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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Good morning.  My

          3  name is Christine Quinn, and I am Chair of the City

          4  Council's Health Committee, and we are here today

          5  for a joint oversight hearing of the Health

          6  Committee, our Aging Committee, and our Subcommittee

          7  on Senior Centers.  We are joined today by the

          8  Speaker of the City Council, Gifford Miller, and are

          9  awaiting the arrival of the Public Advocate, Betsy

         10  Gotbaum.

         11                 In addition to having an oversight

         12  hearing this morning, we will also be voting on

         13  Resolution No. 649.  A resolution calling upon the

         14  Congress of the United States to pass S.2968, the

         15  Emergency Flu Response For Act of 2004.  Introduced

         16  on October 8, 2004 by a bipartisan group of

         17  Senators, which would address the crisis created by

         18  the current shortage of flu vaccine.  This

         19  legislation, which we are seeking to support was

         20  drafted and introduced by New York Senator, Hillary

         21  Clinton.

         22                 We are going to start the hearing

         23  with some opening statements, and then we will turn

         24  to a panel of folks representing our City Department

         25  of Health and Mental Hygiene, and our Health and
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          2  Hospitals Corporation, and our Department for the

          3  Aging.  We will then hear from the Greater New York

          4  Hospital Association, some other hospital health

          5  care agency and advocacy groups.

          6                 But we are going to start the hearing

          7  with an opening statement from our Speaker, Gifford

          8  Miller.  And just before that, I want to thank

          9  Speaker Miller for his attention to this issue of

         10  the shortage of the Flu Vaccine in our city.  And

         11  some folks may have seen the Speaker and other

         12  members of the Council, and the Public Advocate,

         13  released a 10- point plan a few weeks ago for steps

         14  that the City could take to improve our response to

         15  the vaccine shortage, as well as be prepared for the

         16  increasing of flu cases, which we will undoubtedly

         17  see in our public and private hospitals.  And I want

         18  to thank him very much for his leadership on this

         19  very unfortunate, but yet very present health crisis

         20  we are facing in our City, State, and Country.

         21                 SPEAKER MILLER:  Thank you, Madam

         22  Chair.  I appreciate you, and Chairman Dilan, and

         23  Chairman Baez, and all the joint Committees hearing

         24  on this very important issue.

         25                 As a New Yorker and Speaker of the

                                                            7

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  City Council, I am extraordinarily concerned about

          3  this crisis in the sense that, first of all, clearly

          4  a lack of available flu shots is a tremendous

          5  concern because the flu is a very serious health

          6  problem.  And hundreds of thousands of New Yorkers

          7  will become sick with the flu this year.  And the

          8  flu, in 2002, is associated with 2,500 deaths in New

          9  York City.  So we have a serious public health issue

         10  surrounding the flu.

         11                 And certainly I recognize that the

         12  lack of availability of flu shots is not the

         13  responsibility of the City, the Department of

         14  Health, or Health and Hospital Corporation, it is

         15  truthfully a national failure, which really needs to

         16  be corrected, obviously.  And very, very clearly, we

         17  cannot rely on two suppliers to supply something of

         18  the critical public health concern of the flu shot,

         19  or other types of vaccinations in public health

         20  problems.

         21                 But we also have a responsibility to

         22  respond to the times, and I think this hearing is

         23  timely in the sense that we need to make sure that

         24  the City is doing everything that it can in the case

         25  of a public health emergency like this one, with a
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          2  limited amount of supply of flu shots.  To make sure

          3  that everybody who should be getting it, is getting

          4  it, and those who need it most are getting it first.

          5    And I have been concerned, as have many of my

          6  colleagues, by the amount of confusion and panic, I

          7  think is the right word, for what is going on out in

          8  the general public.

          9                 The degree to which, and I must tell

         10  you, you know, every where I go in this City, I am

         11  stopped by people who want to know how they can get

         12  a flu shot, when they can get it, what the order is,

         13  what the process is.  And I think that to this

         14  point, frankly, we have not, as a city, come up with

         15  a clear enough and an ordered enough process for

         16  addressing both the reality of who is getting the

         17  flu shots and the perception of how to go about

         18  getting them in a public health crisis.

         19                 I think this is a good, in some

         20  sense, it is an important test case for our ability

         21  to administer a system in which there is a clear,

         22  public health problem, and a limited amount of

         23  resource in order to address that public health

         24  problem.  And I think we need to do a better job,

         25  because when I hear stories of senior citizens who
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          2  are getting up at 3:30 in the morning in order to go

          3  to immunization clinics so that they can wait on-

          4  line for eight hours in the cold in order to get a

          5  flu shot.  When I find out, that when I visit a

          6  senior center, which has been told that they are

          7  going to get flu shots, 60 of them, and then they

          8  are put on the website, and they have 650 calls from

          9  people asking for flu shots, I am concerned that we

         10  don't have a clear, consistent, and orderly process,

         11  whereby those who we know have the problem are

         12  identified.  And in addition, I just want, I am a

         13  little concerned that there should be clear

         14  understanding of who,  precisely, is organizing

         15  these shots and how they are getting to precisely to

         16  the people who need them most.

         17                 I see in the testimony, for example,

         18  that HHC has said that it has 56,000 doses of the

         19  flu shot on hand.  Is that, you know, and I think

         20  these are the questions, I am glad we are having

         21  this hearing, because I would like to know, is it

         22  HHC that is deciding how to best distribute those

         23  shots, is the Department of Health deciding how to

         24  best distribute those shots, who is it that is in

         25  charge of determining where this scarce and valuable
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          2  resource is going, and how?  And what is the orderly

          3  process for doing it?

          4                 So I think this hearing is extremely

          5  timely.  I want to thank the Chairs for having it.

          6  I want to thank the Public Advocate for her work

          7  with regard bringing to light the notion the fact

          8  that, at least with regard to her study, that there

          9  were conflicting messages being sent by sister

         10  agencies. And thank the Administration and all those

         11  who are committed to ensuring that the health and

         12  the safety of our citizens are addressed as

         13  possible.  I thank everyone for their cooperation,

         14  and I look forward to making sure that we build on

         15  what has happened so far, so that we can do better

         16  in the future.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just want to

         19  say we have been joined by members of both of the

         20  Committees, our Minority Leader, Council Member

         21  Jimmy Oddo, Mike Nelson of Brooklyn, Council Member

         22  Kendall Stewart a member of the Health Committee, of

         23  Brooklyn, Council Member Dennis Gallagher, and the

         24  Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum.

         25                 Next we are going to hear from the
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          2  Chair of our Subcommittee on Senior Centers, Council

          3  Member Eric Dilan, and then we are going to hear

          4  from our Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

          6  Chairwoman Quinn. I consider it an honor, and I am

          7  graced to be conducting this hearing jointly with

          8  yourself, and to have the presence of the Speaker.

          9                 Today, my Subcommittee, the Committee

         10  on Senior Centers, jointly with the Health

         11  Committee, and the Committee on Aging, will conduct

         12  an oversight hearing regarding to New York City's

         13  response to the shortage of the flu vaccine, and its

         14  plan response to possible increases of the flu.

         15                 As we are all well aware this year

         16  the nation is facing a diminished supply of the flu

         17  vaccine.  Public response to the shortage has been

         18  overwhelming.  In New York City, senior centers have

         19  been a vital resource to helping address the crisis

         20  created by the short supply.  Most senior centers

         21  have been listed under the Department of Health and

         22  Mental Hygiene's web site as a location where the

         23  flu vaccine can be obtained.  As a result, hundreds

         24  of people, including people from outside of New York

         25  City and even New York State, have been lining up at
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          2  senior centers waiting to get a flu shot.  Many

          3  senior centers have developed systems to address the

          4  influx of persons awaiting a vaccine.

          5                 For example, some senior centers

          6  created wait lists that provided flu shots on the

          7  first come, first serve basis.  These same lists

          8  will be used when a new shipment of the vaccine

          9  comes in, so that people will not have to wait on

         10  line again.  Surprisingly, senior centers have not

         11  had a uniformed response on how to address this

         12  situation.  Naturally, it is unprecedented and more

         13  of a federal problem, but the need to create

         14  uniformity across the City here is great.

         15                 Would it have been beneficial for a

         16  senior centers to have a uniformed response to the

         17  flu vaccine shortage?  We are hopeful that this

         18  question will be answered here today.

         19                 And at this point, I will turn it

         20  back over to my colleague, Christine Quinn.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         22  much, Chairperson Dilan.  Next, we are going to hear

         23  an opening statement from the Public Advocate, Betsy

         24  Gotbaum.

         25                 I want to say we have also been
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          2  joined by Council member Domenic Recchia of

          3  Brooklyn.

          4                 And as Speaker Miller referenced in

          5  his opening statement, the Public Advocate, in an

          6  effort, really a leadership effort to focus more

          7  attention on how we can improve the City's response

          8  to this crisis, did a report last month that very, I

          9  think, accurately and effectively documented the

         10  real life problems that many New Yorkers are having

         11  in accessing the flu shots.  I want to thank her

         12  also for her leadership on this issue.

         13                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Good

         14  afternoon.  Thank you, Chairs Dilan and Quinn, and

         15  Mr. Speaker for giving me the opportunity to appear.

         16  I too, do not want to blame the flu vaccine shortage

         17  on the City.  But I do want to blame a lack of

         18  response from the agency, the Department of Health,

         19  because a year ago in December I wrote a letter,

         20  which I have a copy of here, to the Commissioner

         21  outlining very similar problems in disseminating

         22  information about the flu, the availability of the

         23  flu shots and vaccine to New York City residents.  I

         24  never received a reply to that letter, which as a

         25  former Commissioner I find quite appalling, because
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          2  mostly Commissioners do respond to elected

          3  officials.

          4                 However, even though we did not get a

          5  response, we still decided to continue this kind of

          6  an investigation.  So we did a follow- up

          7  investigation last month, and I found that the

          8  results were rather alarming.  This flu season

          9  problem was not sprung upon us suddenly.  We knew

         10  that it was coming, and we knew that there was going

         11  to be a shortage of the vaccine.  And the

         12  availability and the accuracy of the information

         13  provided by the Department of Health was wholly

         14  inadequate.  My staff made 77 calls to 3- 1- 1 and

         15  five other phone lines that were advertised on your

         16  web site as being able to assist persons in need of

         17  vaccination information.  We found that often times

         18  the calls went unanswered.

         19                 On the occasion that there were

         20  answered, callers were often misled or led in

         21  circles.  For example, my staff placed 33 calls to

         22  the immunization hotline, yet, only five were

         23  answered.  In other instances, we were directed to

         24  locations that could not assist us.  The record of

         25  inaccurate information distributed a few weeks ago
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          2  falls in line with the Administration's past history

          3  of disseminating wrong information in areas as

          4  education and the hunger health line.

          5                 I am pleased that after the release

          6  of my most recent investigation and the

          7  recommendations made by the Speaker, and the rest of

          8  us at a press conference, which by the way, our

          9  information was called inaccurate on certain outlets

         10  of the media.  But the Administration did move

         11  rather quickly and hired 60 operators to help assist

         12  in giving out this information.  So, I was very

         13  pleased that we had some effect.

         14                 In the future I hope the Department

         15  of Health prepares itself better in advance, so that

         16  people get the right information.  And I certainly

         17  hope that you will ensure a smoother process of

         18  disseminating health information to New Yorkers.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         21  much.  I now want to turn the hearing over to our

         22  first panel.  I just want to say, housekeeping wise,

         23  at some point we may interrupt you all to vote on

         24  the resolution.  And as Standing Committee

         25  procedure, as LaRay can say, you will now need to
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          2  arm- wrestle to see who goes first.  You did that

          3  out in the hallway, okay, as long as it has been

          4  taken care of that is fine.

          5                 DR. WEISFUSE:  Good afternoon.  My

          6  name is Doctor Isaac Weisfuse.  I am a Deputy

          7  Commissioner for the Division of Disease Control for

          8  the New York City Department of Health and Mental

          9  Hygiene.  I would like to thank the City Council's

         10  Health, and Aging Committees, and Senior Center

         11  Subcommittee for their interest and concern on the

         12  Nationwide and City- wide shortage of influenza

         13  vaccine.

         14                 Influenza causes disease among all

         15  age groups, but serious illness and death are

         16  highest among those 65 years of age and older.

         17  Nationwide there are 36,000 deaths a year from the

         18  flu, 90 percent of which occur in people over the

         19  age of 65.  As flu viruses circulate, they mutated

         20  quickly, rapidly creating new strands.  Thus, the

         21  flu vaccine cannot be stockpiled from year to year,

         22  because an entirely new vaccine must be developed

         23  and mass produced for each flu season.  This

         24  represents some unique challenges.

         25                 The flu vaccine shortage due to the
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          2  failure of one of the two suppliers of vaccine to

          3  the United States is being felt all around the

          4  country, and has profoundly challenged local and

          5  state health departments.  In previous flu seasons,

          6  the primary focus of the Health Department's Flu

          7  Vaccination Program is convincing the public to get

          8  the flu shot.  Although, the Department of Health

          9  and Mental Hygiene administers less than 10 percent

         10  of the City's flu vaccines, our public health role

         11  is to champion the health benefits of vaccination,

         12  and to advocate for vaccination among those at risk.

         13                 For the past several years, we have

         14  been working to achieve a vaccination rate of 80

         15  percent of all adults age 65 and older.  Last year,

         16  we were able to reach 66 percent, which was up from

         17  52 percent in 1998, but still far short of our

         18  target of 80 percent and the national average target

         19  of 90 percent by 2010.

         20                 The vaccine shortage has dramatically

         21  changed the Department's role.  The circumstances

         22  that led to the shortage are not within the purview

         23  of our department.  However, the shortage has

         24  presented us with a constantly shifting landscape of

         25  vaccine, supply, questions, public concerns,
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          2  sometimes anger, as well as emerging manufacturer,

          3  federal, and state information. At the local level,

          4  we have been striving to make sure that vaccine gets

          5  to as many of those higher risk people as we can

          6  reach.

          7                 Since October, when the Chiron

          8  manufacturing failure was first announced, until

          9  today, it has been difficult to get clear and

         10  consistent massages from the federal government,

         11  despite our best efforts.

         12                 I would now like to outline the

         13  concrete steps the Department of Health and Mental

         14  Hygiene has taken in response to this shortage.

         15                 First of all, on public information,

         16  which was alluded to in the opening remarks.  Our

         17  public information efforts are multifaceted.  First,

         18  we want to inform New York City residents about the

         19  shortage, and to let high risk groups know that they

         20  would be our priority.  This includes the City's

         21  elderly and those who are chronically ill.  We also

         22  made it clear that since flu usually does not

         23  circulate to a significant degree until December,

         24  there was no immediate need to get a flu shot. We

         25  were certain, based on our communication with the
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          2  drug manufacturer Aventis and with health providers,

          3  that more vaccine would be coming in to the City,

          4  and it has.  We continue to ask people to check with

          5  their doctors first to see if their shipment of

          6  vaccine has arrived.

          7                 Second, we have urged those who are

          8  not in high risk groups to not get their flu shots

          9  this year.  High- risk categories have been

         10  determine don the basis of epidemiologic evidence

         11  showing that these populations are at high risk for

         12  either death or serious complications from the flu.

         13  As you know, the New York State Department of Health

         14  has announced that the CDC's vaccine recommendations

         15  are the standard of care in New York State, and that

         16  failure to abide by them could lead to regulatory or

         17  disciplinary action, including fines and misconduct

         18  proceedings.  DOHMH has communicated extensively

         19  with physicians and members of the public through 3-

         20  1- 1 and the flu hotline, our web site, press

         21  releases and media interviews, electronic and hard

         22  copy bulletins, newsletters, community outreach, and

         23  a letter to elected officials.  Here I have an

         24  example, which I will hand out, of the health

         25  bulletin recently sent out.  We have made it clear

                                                            20

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  that healthy people between the ages of two and 64

          3  should not get their flu shots this year.  While

          4  those people may feel sick and miss work or school,

          5  there simply is not enough vaccine for them, and

          6  their risk of hospitalization or death from flu is

          7  low compared to those over 65.

          8                 A bigger challenge has been meeting

          9  the public's desire for the answer to one question:

         10  Where can I get my flu shot?  Most doctors did not

         11  receive vaccine by mid- October, because either they

         12  ordered only from Chiron, which was the manufacturer

         13  whose flu vaccine was interrupted, or their Aventis

         14  order had not yet been shipped.  Patients who

         15  regularly get their shots through their own doctor

         16  were understandably worried. People who had never

         17  before gotten a flu shot, or who had previously

         18  never thought about it until well into November,

         19  suddenly has to have one today, or tomorrow at the

         20  latest.  It is an unfortunate irony that if we

         21  didn't have a shortage this year, we would be

         22  delighted by this eagerness to get a flu shot, and

         23  hope that people will similarly seek a flu shot next

         24  year, when we hope we have our full vaccine supply.

         25                 The City's Flu Hotline has been
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          2  overwhelmed with calls.  Last year, the most calls

          3  handled in any given day was 1,900, and the maximum

          4  number of calls for any one week was 7,000.  This

          5  year we received as many as 7,000 calls in one day,

          6  10 times the usual volume for this time of year.  In

          7  October alone, the Flu Hotline handled 71,000 calls

          8  compared to a total of 24,000 during last year's

          9  entire flu season.  While the number is impressive,

         10  under these circumstances, there are bound to be

         11  errors, especially early on, and there were.  It

         12  took several days for our vendors to adjust to the

         13  explosion of calls.  The Flu Hotline added phone

         14  lines and staff, the number of lines went from 18 to

         15  50, and then to 90.  We are aware that multiple

         16  phone lines and circulations caused confusion.

         17  People were calling any number they could find on

         18  our web site, and in some cases, programs and

         19  offices outside our purview disseminated erroneous

         20  information in hasten.  However, the point we have

         21  strongly emphasized is that 3- 1- 1 is the number to

         22  call to get vaccine information.

         23                 While the high- risk adult flu

         24  information was changing daily, no real changes have

         25  been necessary in our pediatric program.  Parents
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          2  appear to be getting information appropriately and

          3  accessing flu shots through their regular providers.

          4  HHC's Child Health Clinics have been instructed to

          5  vaccinated all six-to-23-month-old children seen,

          6  whether or not they receive primary care at that

          7  site.  While the four- day survey by the Public

          8  Advocate indicated some misinformation and confusion

          9  about the immunizations sites for infants, we would

         10  note that of 10,713 calls received by the Flu

         11  Hotline between October 22 and October 28, only 39

         12  were about childhood flu immunization.  There were

         13  some mistakes made, and we tried to correct them

         14  immediately, but with this volume of telephone

         15  inquiries, it would be virtually impossible to

         16  eliminate all errors.

         17                 By October 19, we had adjusted all

         18  our web site referrals, directing callers to 3- 1- 1

         19  for flu information.  Like any system, this is not

         20  perfect.  Occasionally, inaccurate information is

         21  conveyed either by live operators or out- of- date

         22  lists.  We do our best to minimize these types of

         23  errors.

         24                 We are also addressing the concerns

         25  of those being asked to forego vaccination this
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          2  year, and of those in a high risk group not yet able

          3  to get one.  To minimize illness, we have been

          4  urging New Yorkers to practice good basic hygiene,

          5  and what we call, "respiratory etiquette."  Everyone

          6  can minimize the spread of illness by following

          7  three basic rules:

          8                 First, when you cough or sneeze,

          9  cover your mouth;

         10                 Second, Wash your hands frequently;

         11  and,

         12                 Lastly, if you are sick with fever

         13  and cough, stay at home instead of going other work

         14  or to school.

         15                 We have sought your help in getting

         16  this word out. We have written to elected officials

         17  with the key messages to conveyed to constituents.

         18  In  October, we had nearly 38,000 visits to our flu

         19  web site.  We mailed out posters and health

         20  bulletins to thousands of community organizations.

         21  In addition, we sent a mass email to more than

         22  19,000 subscribers on our influenza mailing list

         23  that highlighted important flu information on our

         24  web site.  While there are challenges to the vaccine

         25  situation over which we have little control, we are
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          2  trying to do our best, to put in place a responsive

          3  and useful communications apparatus, to keep telling

          4  the public what we know, and to enlisted partners to

          5  assist us in our public information efforts.

          6                 Next, I would like to address some of

          7  the efforts we have done in reaching providers.  We

          8  are reaching out to medical providers to reiterate

          9  the guidelines regarding risk groups, and see how

         10  vaccine was distributed in the City.  Each flu

         11  season,  we send out a City Health Information, or

         12  CHI, publication to all health providers in the City

         13  about flu vaccination.  This year, it was re- edited

         14  literally hours before it was to go to print to make

         15  sure the latest recommendations were explained in

         16  light of this year's shortage.

         17                 We have issued health advisories to

         18  the City's health care providers warning about the

         19  delay in vaccine shipment, and then about the

         20  suspension of Chiron's license and the need to

         21  prioritized vaccinations.  We posted all

         22  communications on DOHMH Health Alert Network, or

         23  HAN.  We used the HAN to post CDC advisories and

         24  other useful information, such as articles from

         25  journals addressing the various risk issues for flu.
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          2                 We have also worked with state and

          3  federal partners.  The State Department of Health

          4  conducted a survey on vaccine supply through

          5  something called HERDS, which is the Health

          6  Emergency Response Data System.  CDC has shared with

          7  us its list of Aventis flu vaccine orders from the

          8  City.  As doctors were only listed by specialty, not

          9  by name or address, so the data was very general.

         10  It revealed a few large gaps, such as nursing homes,

         11  and we have been working with CDC to have vaccines

         12  redirected to that very- high- risk population.

         13                 DOHMH immunization clinics have had

         14  huge new demands placed upon them.  They usually

         15  focus upon serving the local neighborhood, and

         16  generally target their services to people who do not

         17  have an ongoing relationship with a medical

         18  provider. All flu shots at our clinics are free.

         19  Last year, our Immunization Clinics gave 9,500 flu

         20  shots for the entire flu season.  This year, as of

         21  November 5, our clinics had administered over 14,000

         22  vaccinations, and we still have several weeks more

         23  left to go in the flu vaccination season.

         24                 This year, because so many doctors

         25  and hospitals have no vaccine, our clinics have
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          2  become the flu safety net for the City of New York,

          3  and we are providing free flu shots to any New

          4  Yorker in a high- risk category.  We are doing our

          5  best to ensure that people are served as quickly and

          6  as efficiently as possible.  We have borrowed space

          7  from nearby facilities.  We have placed City buses

          8  outside our clinics so that there is a warm place

          9  for people to sit, and minimizing any people who

         10  have to stand outside, especially in this kind of

         11  weather.  We opened special flu vaccine clinics at

         12  larger sites to keep up with the increasing demand.

         13  In a usual year at our Chelsea Immunization Clinic,

         14  in an incredibly busy day, 200 patients would be

         15  seen. We managed to increase that number to 350

         16  people a day by allocating additional staff and

         17  additional space from other programs in the

         18  building.  Within a week, we found extra space to

         19  accommodate the lines, and within two weeks, began

         20  using a nearby recreation center, and so now reach

         21  as many as a thousand people a day twice a week.  We

         22  have enhanced flu services in every Borough,

         23  including new sites where demand was highest.

         24                 We always make a special effort to

         25  reach seniors. Obviously, they are the high- risk
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          2  category for complications of flu.  Since 1992, we

          3  have in cooperation with the Department for the

          4  Aging and the Visiting Nurse Service of New York,

          5  provided flu shots at senior centers City- wide.

          6  Last year, the program reached 18,647 seniors

          7  throughout the City.  This year, more than 350

          8  senior centers signed up to participate.

          9                 With the limited vaccine available,

         10  most of us have had to maintain stringent, pre-

         11  registration lists.  So far, at least 160 senior

         12  clinics have been held, and they immunized more than

         13  19,000 people, far more than reached during the

         14  entirety of last year.

         15                 Another issue that was raised by the

         16  Committee was, what are we doing to prepare for

         17  potential influenza problems and outbreaks?  We do

         18  conduct and have roles in flu surveillance and

         19  disease outbreak investigations.  In the current

         20  environment our concerns about the flu season are

         21  heightened because of the shortage of vaccine.  Our

         22  surveillance for influenza includes active

         23  surveillance of more than 40 City laboratories that

         24  test for influenza.  We also conduct influenza

         25  sentinel surveillance with providers, who report
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          2  weekly the number of visits for influenza- like

          3  illnesses and total number of visits.

          4                 The Department of Health and Mental

          5  Hygiene also has several syndromic surveillance

          6  systems to facilitate detection of city- wide and

          7  localized disease outbreaks, a potential public

          8  health concern.  This system has been the first

          9  warning signal for flu in each of the past several

         10  years.

         11                 So far, we have investigated seven

         12  reported respiratory outbreaks since the 1st of

         13  October.  Two were confirmed by lab testing to be

         14  due to influenza.  The Department works closely with

         15  nursing homes experiencing an influenza outbreak by

         16  providing ongoing consultation on infection control

         17  measures, and the use of antiviral medication and

         18  vaccine for residents and staff to prevent ongoing

         19  transmission.  Since few nursing homes in New York

         20  City have received their influenza vaccine orders to

         21  date, the Department has also provided vaccine to

         22  both of the nursing homes that have experienced

         23  outbreaks this year.  Two outbreaks at this time of

         24  years is neither an unusual occurrence nor a cause

         25  for alarm.  However, this population has the highest

                                                            29

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  death rates for influenza, and its protection

          3  remains the highest priority.

          4                 We have also been working with the

          5  broader hospital community through our Hospital

          6  Preparedness Program to make sure it is ready for

          7  any increased flu hospitalization rates.  This

          8  program is using the flu scenario this fall as the

          9  basis for writing protocols, developing drills and

         10  ensuring the ability to issue standing orders for

         11  flu vaccination.  Signage regarding fever and cough

         12  triage in emergency rooms has been developed and

         13  made available for hospitals.  Our Bioterroism

         14  Coordinator meetings, which bring together personnel

         15  from 70 hospitals across the City, are being used to

         16  communicate directly with the people critical to

         17  planning for and ensuring New York City's surge

         18  capacity in response to infectious disease or other

         19  threats.  The State HERDS system will be activated

         20  during the flu season, enabling us to assess bed

         21  capacity on a daily basis.

         22                 An important role that we have is in

         23  advocating for further allocation of flu vaccine.

         24  On October 26th, we wrote to Doctor Julie

         25  Gerberding, Director of the Centers for Disease
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          2  Control and Prevention, CDC, that we were 619,000

          3  doses short of the amount needed to vaccinated

          4  everyone who fit into a high- risk category.

          5  Commissioner Frieden has been in constant phone and

          6  email contact with federal officials regarding this

          7  critical situation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Did she write

          9  back, have you heard back from her?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We

         11  have not heard back from her in writing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Have you spoken

         13  to her?  Not you, personally, but has the Department

         14  spoken to her?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Yes,

         16  the Department has spoken to her.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So she recognized

         18  and responded to that communication.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thanks.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  New

         22  York City's 2004 Legislative Agenda, published last

         23  spring, included the Department's proposal for a

         24  federal adult vaccine program and a "reinvigorated

         25  federal response" to provide an adequate supply of
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          2  vaccine and sufficient resources to ensure delivery.

          3    So therefore, we are on record as agreeing that

          4  there was much to be done in terms of flu

          5  vaccinations prior to the current shortage. We have

          6  continued to try to get the message out to the

          7  media.  We want the broken vaccine supply system

          8  fixed.  On October 26th, we wrote to our

          9  Congressional Delegation outlining what we thought

         10  needed to be done to avoid such a breakdown in

         11  vaccine availability in the future.  Recommendations

         12  to ensure an adequate supply included:

         13                 1.  Creating a "Vaccines for Adults"

         14  program for adult vaccinations including influenza

         15  vaccination.  This program would entail increased

         16  federal purchase of vaccine and contracts between

         17  government and manufacturers that include

         18  incentives, rewarding delivery of an adequate and

         19  predictable supply of vaccine.

         20                 2.  Requiring manufacturers to

         21  provide substantial advance notice of at least two

         22  years, if discontinuing manufacture.

         23                 3.  Purchasing vaccine from at least

         24  four suppliers with a surplus vaccine ordered in

         25  case of manufacturing failure.

                                                            32

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2                 4.  Pursuing alternative technologies

          3  for vaccine production, such as cell culture and

          4  recombinant technology.

          5                 We also made recommendations for

          6  increasing coverage and access, which would include,

          7  in addition to the

          8   "Vaccines for Adults" program mentioned above,

          9  mandating insurance coverage for influenza

         10  vaccination with no co-payments; setting realistic

         11  reimbursement rates for providers administering

         12  vaccines; and allowing pharmacist to administer

         13  influenza vaccines.

         14                 Redistribution is the toughest issue

         15  in a time of a shortage.  There are vaccine haves

         16  and there are vaccines have nots, depending upon

         17  which manufacturer a provider ordered from. Any

         18  redistribution plans must initially try to address

         19  the gaps created by Chiron's failures, but we also

         20  want to respond to increased demand and awareness

         21  among those at risk.  We know that many hospitals

         22  have had to make decisions about who within their

         23  institutions should be vaccinated.  We have asked

         24  CDC to redirect some vaccine shipments that were

         25  going to low- risk environments. We have used our
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          2  public health leadership role to encourage the

          3  appropriate use of the limited supply of vaccines.

          4                 As we have struggled with these

          5  decisions, we have tried to gain access to the

          6  information that would tell us whether some of the

          7  highest risk people in our City will have access to

          8  vaccine.  For example, the homebound, who are

          9  generally vaccinated through home health care

         10  agencies, and the nursing homes, which for the most

         11  part in New York City ordered from Chiron.  The

         12  information from the State and CDC has helped us

         13  redirect vaccine from low- risk to high- risk

         14  populations.  While these are populations that do

         15  not generally fall within our vaccination program,

         16  they are crucial to consider because of their high

         17  flu mortality and morbidity risk.  We advocated

         18  within New York City to convince employers who

         19  received vaccine to vaccinated only high- risk

         20  employees and donate any excess to the City.  When

         21  we have learned of institutions with particularly

         22  large vaccine supplies, we have encouraged them to

         23  use the vaccine to supply nearby nursing homes or

         24  hold a flu clinic open to their local community.

         25  Some providers and corporations have donated vaccine
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          2  to us.  They are to be commended for their

          3  willingness to contribute to the common good.

          4                 Finally, the flu vaccine shortage is

          5  unprecedented, and a very much dynamic situation.

          6                 We expected to get more vaccine into

          7  New York City.  We urge people to keep in touch with

          8  their usual providers, as additional vaccine may

          9  become available.  So people who call their

         10  providers, say in the first and second week of

         11  October when they had no vaccine, may consider

         12  recalling their providers now to see if vaccine has

         13  been received.  We will continue to enhance the

         14  Department's flu services as long as the supply of

         15  vaccine and demand warrant.  We will meet the

         16  challenge of the flu season when it comes.  The

         17  Department of Health appreciates your interest and

         18  concern.

         19                 I also think that some good has come

         20  out of this situation.  The wide publicity

         21  surrounding the shortage also led to increased

         22  publicity about the real danger of influenza to

         23  those in the high- risk groups.  I hope this

         24  translates into increased demand next year, when,

         25  hopefully, there is going to be more vaccine.  The
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          2  severity of the shortage showed how untenable it is

          3  to rely on two manufacturers; we can hope that the

          4  policy solutions outlined above will finally be

          5  adopted.  We also want to thank our many City

          6  partners who rose to the task of helping us serve

          7  our community by sharing space with us, giving us

          8  additional resources to expand our sites, and

          9  getting the word out to the medical community, such

         10  as the Department for the Aging, CUNY, Office of

         11  Emergency Management, Parks Department, MTA,

         12  Visiting Nurse Service, and Greater New York

         13  Hospital Association.

         14                 Flu season is not yet in full swing

         15  so I hope I can count on you to help us as we

         16  continue to meet the unique challenges in this

         17  every- changing situation.

         18                 Following the other testimonies, I

         19  would be happy to answer any questions you may have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         21  LaRay.

         22                 MS. BROWN:  Good afternoon.  My name

         23  is LaRay Brown.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  LaRay, if I could

         25  interrupt you, one second.
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          2                 MS. BROWN:  Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am sorry, I was

          4  remissed, I did not introduce, announce - -  I did

          5  not announce and introduce two Committee members who

          6  have joined us, Council Member Philip Reed of

          7  Manhattan, a member of the Health Committee, and

          8  Council Member Helen Sears of Queens, also a member

          9  of the Health Committee.

         10                 Okay.

         11                 MS. BROWN:  Thank you.  Good

         12  afternoon.  My name is LaRay Brown, and I am Senior

         13  Vice- President for Corporate Planning, Community

         14  Health, and Intergovernmental Relations at the New

         15  York City Health and Health Corporation.  Thank you

         16  for the opportunity to present testimony on HHC's

         17  response to the flu vaccine shortage.

         18                 The shortage of flu vaccine this year

         19  makes it imperative that we at HHC ensure that the

         20  vaccine gets to the people who need it the most, and

         21  that we coordinate our efforts with those of the New

         22  York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         23  HHC is pleased to announce that flu vaccines are

         24  available for adults and children who fall within

         25  the priority groups established by the Centers for
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          2  Disease Control and Prevention, or CDC.  And my

          3  colleague mentioned those, but I will delineate.

          4  They include:

          5                 All children aged 6-23 months;

          6                 Adults who are 65 years and older;

          7                 Persons who are 2-64 years old with

          8  chronic medical conditions Women who will be

          9  pregnant during the flu season Residents of

         10  long-term care or nursing home facilities.

         11                 This information was sent to HHC's

         12  facilities in a memorandum from HHC President, Dr.

         13  Benjamin K. Chu.  It was sent not only to our

         14  executive leadership, but all of the medical

         15  directors and chiefs of service in mid- October.

         16  HHC will be following these recommendations with

         17  highest priority given to patients in our long- term

         18  and skilled- nursing facilities in order to prevent

         19  institutional flu outbreaks.  In fact, I am pleased

         20  to report that all patients requesting and requiring

         21  flu vaccine in these facilities have received the

         22  vaccine.  The vaccine is also being offered to the

         23  staff who care for these patients.

         24                 People who do not fall into any of

         25  the priority groups, and adults who are not HHC
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          2  patient, who have sought a flu shot at an HHC

          3  facility have been told that the vaccinations must

          4  be deferred.  HHC, as you have heard, is working

          5  with DOHMH to ensure that children who fall within

          6  the CDC priority groups will be able to obtain flu

          7  vaccine at HHC's Child Health Centers with vaccines

          8  provided by the Department.

          9                 Last year, HHC facilities vaccinated

         10  125,000 individuals against the flu.  This year, we

         11  ordered 150,000 doses of the vaccine.  Initially,

         12  HHC received a shipment of 45,770 adult doses.  Of

         13  these doses 43,220 were from Aventis, and 2,550 were

         14  from the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         15  In order to meet our initial goal of vaccinating our

         16  highest priority patients, HHC's facilities were

         17  asked to share vaccines until additional shipments

         18  were received.  On a positive note, we recently

         19  received a shipment of 43,900 adult doses.  As of

         20  last Wednesday, we had approximately 56,000 doses on

         21  hand, and we are continuously monitoring the

         22  situation in the event that additional vaccine

         23  becomes available from other sources.

         24                 In addition, in preparation for the

         25  flu season each year, HHC's facilities assess their
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          2  supply of antiviral agents.  In Dr. Chu's October

          3  memorandum, facilities were also urged to complete

          4  their assessment of their supply of these

          5  pharmaceuticals.  While the use of antiviral agents

          6  for treatment and prophylaxis for the flu are not

          7  good substitutes for the vaccination, these drugs

          8  may become necessary in the event of a large scale

          9  flu outbreak.  The assessments were conducted and

         10  completed, and there is no shortage of these

         11  medications.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  testify, and after my colleague from DFTA gives her

         14  testimony, I will be available to answer any

         15  questions.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  Good

         18  afternoon, members of the Committees on Health and

         19  Aging, and the Subcommittee on Senior Centers.  My

         20  name is Caryn Resnick, and I am the Deputy

         21  Commissioner of the Department for the Aging.  I am

         22  here today to present testimony regarding New York

         23  City's response to the flu vaccine shortage, and its

         24  plan response to increase cases of the flu.

         25                 Every year the Department for the
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          2  Aging works closely with the Department of Health

          3  and Mental Health, and the National Coalition for

          4  Adult Immunizations to ensure that seniors have

          5  access to flu vaccine.  Collaboration began this

          6  past June when DOHMH and the Department for the

          7  Aging sent out a joint letter to senior centers

          8  inquiring if they would like to host a flu shot

          9  event.  To host a flu shot event, a center had to

         10  have a minimum of 50 eligible seniors.  This number

         11  was not based on how many seniors attend the center,

         12  but rather on how many had received flu shots in the

         13  past.  Some of our centers joined together in order

         14  to reach that number.

         15                 Once a center qualified for a flu

         16  shot event, the center then submitted a request for

         17  the vaccines they would need. DOHMH then notified

         18  the center of the number of vaccines that would be

         19  received.  DOHMH confirmed a flu shot event date

         20  with each center, and a Visiting Nurse Service

         21  administered the shots at the centers.

         22                 Prior to the announcement of a

         23  vaccine shortage, senior centers were free to use

         24  any administration model they liked.  For example,

         25  first come, first served, or preregistration.  Some
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          2  senior centers made participants fill out a

          3  registration form requesting the flu shot.

          4                 With the announcement of the shortage

          5  lists were established at all senior centers.  Most

          6  sites now have waiting lists in anticipation of

          7  additional vaccine.

          8                 It is important to note that only 10

          9  percent of the New York City population received flu

         10  shots from DOHMH clinics or DFTA senior centers.

         11  Ninety percent receive the flu shot from their

         12  primary care physician.

         13                 The Department for the Aging will

         14  continue with DOHMH to do everything possible to

         15  seniors, 65 and older, a flu vaccine.  We are also

         16  reminding our senior centers that a flu shot

         17  received later in the fall will work to protect them

         18  during the height of the flu season.  The Department

         19  has also urged New Yorkers over 65 to talk to their

         20  doctors about receiving a pneumonia shot.

         21                 In closing, the staff of my agency

         22  and DOHMH have worked swiftly to ensure that a

         23  vaccine is delivered to those who need it most.  We

         24  will continue to join with DOHMH to ask the Center

         25  for Disease Control and Prevention for additional
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          2  vaccine, and will closely monitor the flu situation

          3  in our centers throughout the season.

          4                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          5  testify before you today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          7  have some questions, as do my colleagues, so I will

          8  probably ask a couple and then come back.  But I

          9  just want to ask one question, and I don't whether

         10  the agencies at the table will be able to answer it.

         11    So, if not, your Office of Legislative Affairs or

         12  somebody could get back to us.

         13                 One of the things that I am concerned

         14  about, and we should have been more aggressive in

         15  reaching out to HRA about this hearing, so it is

         16  definitely our fault that they were not at the

         17  table.  But does anyone at the table know what

         18  coordination, I guess really from DOH has occurred

         19  with HRA?  My question is, well, my concern focuses

         20  around the HIV/AIDS Service Administration within

         21  HRA, and whether HRA has been instructed about what

         22  particular type of information all of their clients

         23  at HASA would, obviously, fall into an at- risk

         24  category.  And I am sure they are, you know as much

         25  as anyone else, nervous and worried about getting
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          2  their shots.  So, what kind of coordination has DOH

          3  had with HRA, and what type of info are we getting

          4  out to the HASA clients on a regular basis?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We can

          6  probably provide you more detail.  But HRA is on all

          7  our contact lists in terms of getting out

          8  information.  To my knowledge, and we have not had

          9  direct contact with HASA clients themselves.

         10  Although, they certainly may have called the lines,

         11  we just do not have any way of identifying.  But

         12  clearly, you know, HIV infection is an indication

         13  for getting flu vaccine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am sorry,

         15  repeat, what did you just say?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Having

         17  HIV, being HIV infected is certainly, as you know,

         18  an indication for getting flu vaccine.  And we have

         19  been talking to a number of providers for HIV

         20  infected individuals.  And clearly that is in our

         21  survey assessment group to sort out how to get them

         22  more vaccine.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So by that you

         24  mean non- profit organizations, when you say

         25  providers, like the community- based groups we think
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          2  of.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Well

          4  community based groups, but also if there are

          5  private providers that don't have vaccine, that is

          6  an issue as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It seems to me it

          8  is a mistake, not finger- pointing, but a mistake

          9  perhaps more accurately characterize, not a complete

         10  use of the existing infrastructure that we have to

         11  be in greater coordination with HASA.  I mean, I

         12  think it is great that they are on your list, but it

         13  seems, to me, there is a crisis of the first place

         14  we should go is look at what we have already set up

         15  internally in government, and then outside of

         16  government, which you have referenced.  So I don't

         17  understand why, you know, Commissioner Eggelstein

         18  and David Hansel, and the other point people who are

         19  the HASA folks wouldn't be much more involved at

         20  Command Central on this.  Because it seems like it

         21  is an infrastructure that we have, and a great way

         22  to see folks check in with their caseworkers, you

         23  know, some more regularly than others, to get

         24  information to people.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I
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          2  guess, I agree with you.  I do think though that we

          3  are working with the places where they would get

          4  their medical care to try to get the vaccine to

          5  them, so they get vaccinated.  And that to us, was

          6  an important point.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I agree with

          8  that.  I just think, I completely agree and I think

          9  that is an important point. I just think that as we

         10  sit here today and look back over the past six weeks

         11  and what we could have done better, I think that is

         12  an example of a place where we could have better

         13  utilized an existing governmental agency.  And I

         14  would just ask, and I appreciate you recognizing

         15  that on the record, that we kind of make note of

         16  that.  So, if we have another situation, flu shot,

         17  hope not, but something, we can think about that.

         18  Because, you know, it was an oversight that, we

         19  should just, might have been helpful.  And I just

         20  ask if you guys could reach out a little more at

         21  this point still to the HASA folks, because they

         22  would also, obviously, be another place where you

         23  could get information about the number of cases that

         24  are spiking out there.

         25                 In your page 2 of your testimony,
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          2  Doctor, you had a statement that I found really

          3  troubling and a little bit alarming.  Which was,

          4   "That since October when the Chiron manufacturing

          5  failure was first announce until today, it has been

          6  difficult to get clear and consistent messages from

          7  the federal government despite our best efforts."

          8  That statement was actually why I asked if that

          9  other person at the CDC had called you back.  That

         10  is unbelievable.  I mean it just seems outrageous

         11  that New York City, that any city, but certainly New

         12  York City could not get, even when we have tried,

         13  clear and consistent information from our federal

         14  government.  I am just shocked about that.  And can

         15  you tell us what efforts you all have taken to try

         16  to engage them, and whether you are hearing this is

         17  what other urban centers are getting as it relates

         18  to a response from the federal, and what are the

         19  steps we could take together to try to, you know,

         20  jar the federal government into, I would say action,

         21  but maybe it is not action, maybe they are doing all

         22  this stuff and we just do not know about it?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I

         24  think we, first of all, I do not think this is just

         25  a New York City problem, I think it is every place
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          2  that probably would say the same thing. We have

          3  taken a number of actions on that.  Obviously, there

          4  has been personal contact in terms of telephones and

          5  emails.

          6                 In addition, we are participating in

          7  conference calls with related organizations and the

          8  Center for Disease Control several times a week.

          9  And get their notes and review them, to review the

         10  situation.  So, we have done it both from the direct

         11  New York City to CDC, but also as a part of other

         12  coalitions and outreach efforts.

         13                 I think that, you know, they have

         14  just been not consistent discussions about, you

         15  know, deadlines, things like that of when they hope

         16  to resolve some flu issues.  And I cannot really

         17  speculate necessarily why that has occurred.  I

         18  suspect that it is because, they too are facing sort

         19  of an unprecedented problem and are struggling to

         20  deal with it.  But I don't know, I cannot tell you

         21  that for a fact.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, but even if

         23  they have nothing to tell us, they should tell us

         24  they have nothing to tell us, you know what I mean.

         25  Because then, at least, we know we are on our own.
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          2                 Tuesday, --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Could

          4  I just interrupt?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Except

          7  for they have the vaccine, so - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right, so they

          9  must have something, I agree with you.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  - -

         11  so, I mean, if we are on our own, that is not a

         12  great place to be.  So we really need to work with

         13  them and resolve these issues.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I completely

         15  agree with you.

         16                 Tuesday, pouting aside, has any,- -

         17  you are welcome, Jimmy, and that is all you are

         18  getting, so enjoy the moment- -  has the Mayor put

         19  any, used his political connections and clout in

         20  relationship, which are documented as significant

         21  with the Bush Administration to try to improve the

         22  federal government's communication with his city?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  You

         24  know I think that is probably best left to others,

         25  in terms of the personal communication.  I know that
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          2  Mayor Bloomberg has been front and center in terms

          3  of press outreach and communication in the City

          4  about the situation with flu vaccine.  Who should

          5  get vaccinated, who should not get vaccinated.  And

          6  you know, we certainly, that has been an important

          7  role for him.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Absolutely, but

          9  as you said, we do not have them.  The feds are the

         10  folks have them.  So, what has he done to speak to

         11  those, I mean, you guys, you at DOH seem you have

         12  done an admirable job engaging the health hierarchy

         13  of the federal government.  And it certainly sounds

         14  like you are really going at it, and I give you a

         15  lot of credit for that.  So, now it seems like we

         16  need to work our way up the food chain to get us the

         17  information that we need, and it seems like we need

         18  to then head to another spot.  I mean, has the Mayor

         19  made any communications, or the Deputy Mayor's

         20  Office has made any communications directly,

         21  themselves?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I know

         23  that the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor have been

         24  briefed extensively on this issue, and what our

         25  public advocacy and our federal advocacy are, and
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          2  they sign onto it.  I, personally, cannot speak to,

          3  you know, personal kinds of telephone calls that the

          4  Mayor had.  It is just not information I

          5  particularly possess.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If we could get

          7  the Committee information on what type of

          8  communications beyond DOH is within CDC, et cetera,

          9  that would be useful for us to try to be helpful on

         10  a political advocacy front, to try to, at least, get

         11  the City the information.  And then hopefully to get

         12  our fair share of the redistribution and whatever

         13  else is out there.  So I look forward to that

         14  information.

         15                 Just a final question on this area,

         16  then I will move on to my colleagues.  What

         17  communication has DOH, or the Administration, or

         18  anybody had with the Republican members of our

         19  Congressional Delegation, first and foremost, and

         20  then the other members of the Congressional

         21  Delegation?  Because if we are not getting the

         22  information we need, and therefore, not getting the

         23  resources we need from the CDC, I would think that

         24  our Congressional folks, particularly our Republican

         25  colleagues, are in a unique position to be effective

                                                            51

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  to advocate for us on that level.  So how have we

          3  engaged them?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We

          5  have engaged our entire Congressional Delegation on

          6  the issues around flu vaccines on some of our

          7  advocacy, and some of our recommendations, and some

          8  of our needs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Have we asked

         10  them to get us the info, have we called them and

         11  said, we are not getting information since October,

         12  can you help us?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I

         14  think that they understand that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I mean did you

         16  tell them? Just because, and I am not trying to beat

         17  a dead horse, but I would never have thought this

         18  sentence would be in there.  So I am just stopping,

         19  because I am really surprised by it.  So, I am just

         20  asking, because I think they would only know, if you

         21  told them that directly.  Because I would never have

         22  guessed that was the case.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Our

         24  Washington Office has been working very closely and

         25  constantly on talking to the New York City
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          2  Congressional Delegations about the situation, about

          3  advocacy for the City in terms of number of doses

          4  and needing to get clarification on that.  So, that

          5  has been a very active role with our folks in

          6  Washington.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well I am glad to

          8  hear that. And if you could, you know, obviously,

          9  give us any information on the Mayor's

         10  communication, and then let the Council know how we

         11  can be more helpful on this and other points, I

         12  would appreciate it.

         13                 I want to come back around to other

         14  folks, but now I am going to call on Chairperson

         15  Dilan, do you have questions?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Well I defer to

         17  the Public Advocate, if she would like to ask any

         18  questions.

         19                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair. Yes, I was curious, but I understand that

         21  other cities, and particularly San Francisco is

         22  using flu mist.  And what is the Department's

         23  policy, philosophy, are you advocating that, or are

         24  you telling people where they can get that?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We do

                                                            53

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  advocate for flu mist.  It has indications, in other

          3  words, there are certain populations where it is

          4  indicated for.  Certainly, in the population, sort

          5  of 64 and younger it is indicated.  And so we are

          6  very much in favor of people using flu mist, who it

          7  is appropriate for.

          8                 It should not be given to people who

          9  are over 65, should not be given to people who are

         10  immune suppressed, or those health care workers who

         11  deal face- to- face with immune suppressed persons,

         12  or that kind of thing.

         13                 So, it has very strong usages, but

         14  then the people have to know that it is not for

         15  everybody.  So we are very much so encouraging it.

         16  It is mainly through, you know, the private sector

         17  that orders flu mist.  We are not procuring it and

         18  giving out in our facilities.  Ninety plus, 95, 98

         19  percent of the people who come to us are really in

         20  the over 65 or another risk category.  So it would

         21  be inappropriate for us to give flu mist given that

         22  population.

         23                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  And can you

         24  explain why the Department of Mental, DOMH clinics

         25  do not administer pediatric flu vaccines?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Our

          3  policy is not to give vaccines to children under the

          4  age of 4.  That has been a longstanding policy.

          5                 One of the things that we have always

          6  tried to encourage is, we will function as a safety

          7  net, but we think it is better for children to

          8  develop a relationship with a primary care provider,

          9  and get their flu vaccinations as well as their

         10  other care there.  Because our immunization clinics

         11  have a very limited focus.  So, you know, our

         12  encouragement is to have children be enrolled with a

         13  Child Health Clinic or other provider, so they can

         14  really get holistic care.  And so, we are not, you

         15  know, that is not something that we would take on,

         16  and we do not think that that does a service just to

         17  keep a child up to- date in their immunizations, but

         18  not deal with all the other issues.

         19                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  And the

         20  final question is, you mentioned that HHC has an

         21  availability of antiviral medication.  And I just

         22  wondered, does DOH have the same situation, and are

         23  you getting that information out to people in case,

         24  they, obviously, get it?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We do
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          2  not have a stock pile of antivirals.  We are working

          3  with the New York State Department of Health, who is

          4  developing a stock pile, and they have assured us

          5  that should there be outbreaks, we will be able to

          6  tap into their stock pile.  So, I feel very

          7  comfortable with that relationship; we work very

          8  closely with the State Department of Health on all

          9  these flu issues, and we have had extensive

         10  conversation about the availability of antivirals

         11  and how much they have on stock, et cetera, et

         12  cetera.  And we feel we are in good shape on that.

         13                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:   Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Yes, I just had

         15  one question on, maybe how, on the private sector

         16  and it will be available to any member on the panel

         17  that is best suited to answer.  But have we seen any

         18  instances of price gouging in the private providers

         19  that administer flu shots, have we seen any of that,

         20  yet?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We are

         22  not aware of price gouging, in that, we have not

         23  received complaints.  Also, we are not aware,

         24  remember I said before the New York State Department

         25  of Health has instituted these indications as policy
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          2  and guidance for care.  And to my knowledge, there

          3  have been no kind of regulatory actions on providers

          4  for misuse of vaccine.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, and please

          6  correct me if I say this name wrong, Dr. Weisfuse.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:

          8  Weisfuse.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Weisfuse, I am

         10  sorry.  I guess, could you please describe the

         11  process at which the public may sign up to receive a

         12  flu shot at a senior center?  What is the number of

         13  shots per location that the center is able to give

         14  on predetermined vaccination days?  Once a certain

         15  threshold of people have signed up, is that location

         16  then taken off the flu finder database, or is this a

         17  more appropriate question for Ms. Resnick?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  The

         19  first question is, you are going to have to repeat

         20  them for me, because I forgot what the first

         21  question is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  The process in

         23  which the public may sign up for a flu shot.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  As I

         25  said earlier, now they really have all gone on the
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          2  first come, first serve basis.  Because of the

          3  shortage, really everything changed dramatically

          4  this year.

          5                 In the past, we really had to do a

          6  major campaign to get seniors to come out to get flu

          7  shots.  The Commissioner and I, and DOHMH, would go

          8  out on the road.  I would roll up my sleeve to get a

          9  flu shot to encourage seniors to come out to get a

         10  shot.  So we needed a minimum of 50 people in order

         11  for a center to qualify to get flu shots.

         12                 So they would sing up based on what

         13  their numbers were last year, and that is the way we

         14  calendared the events this year.  Pretty much,

         15  whatever you had last year, is what they got

         16  calendared for.

         17                 Then, of course, when the shortage

         18  got announced, suddenly there was a great demand,

         19  and seniors from all over the City, who do not even

         20  attend the center, started lining up and coming for

         21  flu shots, which created these enormous lines.

         22                 DOHMH was sending out greater

         23  quantity than what centers had signed up for.  So

         24  they were coming out with as much as they could,

         25  which was generally around 100 or so vaccines per
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          2  site.  And even so, it was not often enough for the

          3  volume of seniors that were lined up.

          4                 So now they are pre- registering, but

          5  when the vaccine runs out, that is unfortunately the

          6  end of who can get vaccinated that day.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, and that,

          8  would it be fair to say that that is now a Citywide

          9  DFTA policy, in light of the shortage?  Yes?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  It

         11  isn't really DFTA policy.  We have still left the

         12  policy up to the individual senior centers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  So DFTA,

         14  to this point, has not created a uniformed policy in

         15  regards to this outbreak?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  No, we

         17  haven't.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  I guess,

         19  how can senior centers then be better prepared in an

         20  event of another unexpected emergency situation,

         21  City- wide, whether it be a blackout, or whether it

         22  be a flu vaccination shortage?  What can be done

         23  City wide, I guess to create a uniformed response to

         24  emergencies as it relates to seniors?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  Well we
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          2  do have emergency response systems in place, you

          3  know, City- wide, and work with our community

          4  partners to create that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  This wouldn't

          6  fall under the emergency response plan that you have

          7  implemented?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  Well

          9  due to the shortage of vaccine, we cannot

         10  manufacture the vaccine.  So, it is not really sort

         11  of in the same venue, I don't think.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If I could just

         14  ask, Commissioner, what type of communications have

         15  you been having with senior centers?  Because I have

         16  heard mixed things.  Some senior centers say, have

         17  reported to me that they have gotten, you know, some

         18  info, some say, yes, we have been kept in touch, and

         19  some say, you know, I haven't heard anything at all

         20  from DFTA since this all, you know, was announced.

         21  So, what type of communication do you have?

         22                 Because as you can tell, kind of from

         23  my HRA question, you know, I am interested in

         24  today's hearing, in general, in exploring have we

         25  really fully utilized everything we already have
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          2  within in government as a way to get information out

          3  there.  And so, can you tell me about what type of

          4  communications you have had with the senior centers?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  Just

          6  recently, actually, we did a massive WinFax to all

          7  of our senior centers updating on the most recent

          8  information.  We, as an agency, have had tremendous

          9  partnership and cooperation with DOHMH.  And as we

         10  get information we pass it along to the senior

         11  centers.  We have information always on our Internet

         12  with a direct link to DOHMH web site.

         13                 We encourage everybody to go to 3- 1-

         14  1.  So all the calls that, you know, we get, come

         15  directly from 3- 1- 1, and that is the number we

         16  give out to the community at large.  And then we do

         17  send out WinFaxes directly to the senior centers.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  How many of them

         19  sent out since the flu shot shortage was announced.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  I think

         21  maybe two.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That seems like

         23  an inadequate number in my opinion.  Because I just

         24  feel like, or that is what senior centers are

         25  reporting to me, that they do not feel like they
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          2  have enough information.  And it may be that more

          3  may not have given them that much more information,

          4  but, at least, they would have known that people

          5  were, knew that they were kind of out there in the

          6  wilderness, so- to- speak.  Do you know what I mean?

          7                 So I would request that DFTA and DOH

          8  try to increase the amount of communication they are

          9  having with senior centers between now and the end

         10  of the flu season.  You know, and think about

         11  whether two to date was enough.  Because what I am

         12  hearing from folks is that it wasn't.  And again,

         13  maybe you had, if you think back, you know we could

         14  have told them X.  But even if not, I think it is

         15  important for the service providers to know that we

         16  know they are out there.

         17                 Do you ever, with the senior centers,

         18  well not ever, in general, but have you considered

         19  now in this flu shot crisis, asking the senior

         20  centers to then communicate back with you, you know,

         21  to say how many seniors have requested, how many

         22  have you provided to, have you thought about sending

         23  them a form so they can tell you how people aren't

         24  showing up who usually show up?  So we have a sense

         25  of how many flu cases there are going out there,
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          2  have you considered that?  Because that seems to me

          3  like it would be an effective way to get info about

          4  how far we are reaching, how many people we are

          5  reaching, (a).  And (b), effective info about how

          6  many cases of the flu are out there. And (c), very

          7  useful info to advocate with the federal government

          8  for our fair share of the redistribution.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We do

         10  collect information on the number of vaccinations

         11  given in each center.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  At the centers,

         13  that is great.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Both

         15  collectively and individually.  I can ensure you, to

         16  my knowledge, that nobody has, you know, there is no

         17  center that I have heard of that did not have enough

         18  people this year.  So there wasn't an excess vaccine

         19  issue.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I'm sorry, I

         21  don't understand what you mean, Doctor.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I

         23  think you had said that did we collect information

         24  about whether there were not enough people.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, no, no, how
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          2  many people wanted it and didn't get it.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Didn't

          4  get it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So that they had

          6  50 shots on Tuesday, and 250 people showed up, of

          7  those 200, 80 center members, so they know that

          8  there are 80 center members at Our Lady of Pompeii,

          9  who want it and did not get.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Okay,

         11  to my knowledge, we don't ordinarily collect that

         12  information.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I'm

         15  sorry, the other question.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just think it

         17  would be useful to think about expanding what you

         18  ordinarily collect.

         19                 The other was about how many cases,

         20  once they start happening.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Yes,

         22  our case reporting for flu are through, because flu

         23  is a difficult issue, difficult disease other

         24  diagnose.  Many people get colds or other problems

         25  that are not necessarily caused by flu.  So we rely
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          2  on sentinel providers where we ask them to actually

          3  get specimens that will allow us to identify

          4  influenza, the virus from their patients.  So that

          5  is probably the more reliable way of making a

          6  diagnosis of flu.  Because a lot of cold viruses and

          7  other illnesses that people get are not caused by

          8  influenza virus, so that is why we do it that way.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well all I know

         10  is that I think that with the ordinary communication

         11  that we have had, or the typical communication we

         12  have had with centers, you know, around path shots

         13  needs to just be changed.  Because this is such an

         14  extraordinary situation.  And I think, from what I

         15  am hearing, DFTA should definitely consider

         16  increasing the communication.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I just

         18  wanted to add one thing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sure.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  My

         21  colleagues in the front row, passed to me, is that

         22  for, we are considering actually doing another round

         23  in some senior centers in December to go back to

         24  places where there were turn aways, or it just

         25  didn't work out, to try to get more vaccine to those
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          2  senior centers at that time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And when you do

          4  that, is there something that you have learned in

          5  these first weeks that would change how you

          6  distribute them at the centers.  You know, of the

          7  one complaints that we have heard and seen on TV is

          8  all these long lines, long lines, long lines.  So is

          9  there something that we have learned in those weeks

         10  that would then make us do it differently, so that

         11  we don't have people hearing that there is shots on

         12  Tuesday at Caring Community, so they line up at

         13  Washington Square Park at three o'clock in the

         14  morning, and there is no shots.  They were on

         15  Crosswalks tonight, I made that up, they are not

         16  there tomorrow.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We

         18  have tried to get information out to people in our

         19  own clinics where we can, you know, make some real

         20  changes at facilities, we have done so to keep,

         21  increase the amount of waiting space.  Some times we

         22  have gone to other places, some times we have gotten

         23  MTA buses to help, see people, if that is what is

         24  needed.  And if those kinds of facility venue

         25  changes or need for buses, are there for the senior
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          2  centers, we can certainly entertain doing it.  But

          3  the senior centers, themselves, must offer

          4  immunization clinics or fixed sites.  And so, unless

          5  they change the venue totally, for example, the only

          6  waiting room for 100 people, it is hard to deal with

          7  the line.  So, we are certainly willing to help them

          8  with chairs or other things.  But unless we change

          9  the site, it would be hard to deal with all the line

         10  issues.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, I mean there

         12  might be other ways to think of doing it, you know,

         13  whether we pre schedule people once there is more

         14  than X number of people in the line, those people

         15  get given a ticket for the next day.  I am not sure

         16  that, I mean, I think the waiting room thing and the

         17  bus and stuff, I think those were good steps.  I am

         18  not sure we fully exhausted exactly the ways we

         19  could better, make the situation easier for those

         20  who are trying to get it.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  At

         22  almost all of our sites at this point, everybody has

         23  moved to a pre- registration system.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So that should be

         25  helpful with lines, and we are getting that
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          2  information out.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  I mean

          4  we were in contact with senior centers.  Certainly,

          5  you know they are not shy, so they were certainly

          6  calling the office asking for help. And when the

          7  demand, you know, became so dramatic, we started to

          8  pull the calendar off of the DOHMH web site, and off

          9  of our web site, because it was being put out there

         10  for the general public.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RESNICK:  So we

         13  started to take that information off.  And now

         14  everybody really has pre registered folks from

         15  within their own community.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

         17  Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair. So actually, DFTA in concert with DOH,

         20  has been asking the senior center executive

         21  directors to have a list, ask the seniors to sign

         22  onto so we would know who would be wanting a flu

         23  shot.  Have we done this all along, or is this

         24  relatively new?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  No, I
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          2  think, I didn't quite say that.  I said that we will

          3  offer those places that were not able to accommodate

          4  everybody in the first go round, we would set up a

          5  second clinic in December.

          6                 But I think there are a couple of

          7  other additions, if I could just take a moment.

          8                 One is that the flu vaccination

          9  situation is dynamic.  So if a senior called his or

         10  her provider, say, October 10th, and they said we

         11  don't have the vaccine, they should try again.

         12  Because some providers have gotten the vaccine, and

         13  so that may decrease some of the need to go to a

         14  senior center to get a flu vaccine.

         15                 In addition, it is pretty obvious to

         16  us that many of the seniors that we have been

         17  vaccinating in our own immunization clinics on a

         18  routine year, are getting their vaccination through

         19  their providers.  At least that is what they are

         20  telling us anecdotally.  So we are taking some of

         21  that group, you know, and dealing with it

         22  themselves.

         23                 So I think that, I wouldn't, I would

         24  still recall, advise to recall the provider and see

         25  what the situation is now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Good.  And we

          3  should perhaps initiate that, if it hasn't been for

          4  next year.  And we have to factor into any equation

          5  the current crisis, if you will, of course, it sort

          6  of negates a lot of what we would have liked to have

          7  done, and sort of like, I think it was

          8  unprecedented, I believe this flu vaccine shortage,

          9  right?

         10                 I also want to thank all of you for

         11  being here, of course, it has been very, very

         12  important and illuminating.  And to thank you also,

         13  for your hands- on response and your obvious concern

         14  for the people of this City.

         15                 There were a bunch of questions that

         16  were already answered, asked and answered.  We seem

         17  to have a quiet panic, if not a panic.  But I hope

         18  what you are suggesting is that there isn't much

         19  chance for an epidemic in the City.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  That

         21  is a tough question, let me go back for a second.

         22  Every year, there are many people, even though it is

         23  indicated to get flu vaccination, don't get flu

         24  vaccination.  And for the past many years, we have

         25  been advocating for flu vaccination.
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          2                 The issue of an epidemic, there

          3  certainly will be flu this year in New York City, as

          4  there has been for time and memorial, so it

          5  definitely comes around.  You know, the issue of an

          6  epidemic is very difficult to predict.  There

          7  certainly will be a baseline of flu activity in the

          8  City.  Clearly, the issue of the shortage may make

          9  it worse, not clear.  Every flu season is a little

         10  bit independent, and not necessarily the easiest to

         11  predict.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Right, as the

         13  annoying commercial that has been on, "I told you

         14  so," you know, whatever. And you have been telling

         15  them so.

         16                 But I think it is more than too, that

         17  people what to get one now then they did before,

         18  because it seems to be the rage, of course, but it

         19  is also, I suppose it is based upon the feeling that

         20  more people will come down with the flu, so now it

         21  is more important than ever to receive this vaccine.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We

         23  clearly are on board that people in these risk

         24  groups should get vaccinated.  We are trying very

         25  hard to get as much vaccine out there, so that they
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          2  do.  And the end line is to decrease the sickness

          3  and mortality due to influenza virus in the City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And it is

          5  your feeling that we will have enough vaccine, and

          6  approximately when, to deal with this issue?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Again,

          8  even on a year when there is no vaccine shortage,

          9  the amount of vaccine manufactured out there is not

         10  enough to deal with every high- risk group in New

         11  York City.  In fact, I had mentioned in my testimony

         12  that we estimated that only 66 percent of people

         13  over 65 got flu vaccine, last year, which means that

         14  one- third did not.  So even when there was no

         15  shortage, as last year was, there was a gap, a real

         16  gap in terms of flu uptake by seniors.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  And

         18  this is, of course, out of our of scope of power,

         19  without a doubt, but I think it should be looked

         20  into in a broader horizon, the legal aspects.  I

         21  feel, this is what caused this crisis to begin.  And

         22  I think, perhaps, obviously nobody in this room is

         23  at fault or responsible.  I don't think anybody in

         24  Washington, so- to- speak, on either side of the

         25  aisle is responsible.  I think the blame lies, in a
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          2  large degree, in trial lawyers.  And I think that

          3  has to be really looked into, dealt into greatly,

          4  because if we don't have lids on this, if we don't

          5  have a cap on what companies could be sued for, I

          6  think the general publications, general populations

          7  are aware of this.  People do not want to make this

          8  vaccine.  It just is, apparently, not profitable.

          9                 Why is it not profitable?  A few

         10  people sue and there goes your profits, there goes

         11  your company, in some cases. And if we don't address

         12  this issue, I think we will continually have this

         13  problem, and it will not just be flu.  It could be

         14  even more deadly diseases.  So, I am just throwing

         15  it out there for every syndication to jump on this,

         16  because I think that is mainly where this problem,

         17  the cause, the root problem this plays.  And trial

         18  lawyers will be coming after me for saying this.

         19  But the hell with them.  I think that is the main

         20  issue we have to address.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Now we are going

         23  to quickly call the roll on the resolution, and then

         24  we will have questions from Council Members Sears

         25  and Stewart, and then I have a few more questions,
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          2  myself.

          3                 If the clerk could please call the

          4  roll.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Resolution 649.

          6  Quinn.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes, and I just

         16  would like to say that I have a sneaking suspicion

         17  that we are going to be hearing more about putting a

         18  lid on trial attorneys and taut reform in the near

         19  future, thankfully.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 5 in the

         21  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         22  the item is adopted. Council members, please sign

         23  the Committee report.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I, in sincerity,

         25  also think it is George Bush's fault, but I will not
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          2  belabor the - -  I know that that is a shock for

          3  Jimmy Oddo, but I will not go into the GAO Report

          4  and other things at this moment in time.

          5                 Council Member Sears.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair, and thank you, Dr. Weisfuse and

          8  Commissioner Resnick.  And I don't know if this

          9  question has been asked previously, but I am not

         10  certain.  You stated in your testimony that it is

         11  very difficult to stock pile the vaccine, because

         12  when the virus hits the air it mutates, and I

         13  understand that.

         14                 Tell me, so I would take it from

         15  that, that the strain has to be identified, and then

         16  the vaccine has to be developed.  Now can you tell

         17  me, how long does it take for a vaccine to be

         18  developed?  So this is going to be an annual process

         19  when that strain is identified.  How long does it

         20  take, and how long does it take before it is

         21  distributed to the public?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  My

         23  understanding is that it works this way.  We know

         24  that strains of influenza are analyzed every year

         25  that occur in the Far East part of the world,
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          2  because the understanding of influenza and the

          3  spread of it, is that it comes from that area of the

          4  world and then spreads.

          5                 So every year there are experts in

          6  influenza who look at strains that are available,

          7  and then they make recommendations for the make- up

          8  of that year's vaccine.  And then it takes the

          9  manufacturer something on the order of three to four

         10  months to manufacture the new batch of vaccine for

         11  that particular year.  I don't think, and I don't

         12  know the specifics of this, but I think the

         13  distribution part of it, is probably not the deal

         14  breaker in terms of timing.  But it is that gap.

         15                 That is why to start anew in

         16  November, to start making a new vaccine probably

         17  wouldn't really work, because by the time you got

         18  and distributed it, the flu season may be over.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS:  Exactly.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  So

         21  that is why the response is, let's not go and make

         22  new vaccine from scratch.  So that is the annual

         23  methodology for how the flu vaccine is constituted

         24  and manufactured.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS:  I see.  Ms.
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          2  Resnick, you state that only 10 percent of those

          3  receiving the flu vaccine, actually come from the

          4  agencies, that 90 percent come from the private

          5  physicians.  What I have found is that because of

          6  that the overload in the health clinics has been

          7  enormous, truly enormous. The lines start at 6:30 in

          8  the morning, and by seven o'clock the 200 number has

          9  been met, and there are 400 people waiting outside,

         10  and they have to start this process again on the

         11  Thursday or the following Monday.  And I think that

         12  HHC, and you know my feelings about HHC, I think

         13  they do a tremendous job, and Dr. Frieden, all of

         14  you are, are pretty remarkable in handling what you

         15  do.

         16                 But it seems to me that we should be

         17  able in the Council offices to help you.  Because I

         18  can tell you the calls that came into my office,

         19  from people who were 85 could not stand in line,

         20  there was no place for them to sit inside, because

         21  the facilities are very limited in space, and they

         22  are extremely overcrowded, and nor could they really

         23  return.  Their physician did not have any, and these

         24  were examples of those who were using facility.  The

         25  senior center did not, and recognizing that we have
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          2  to do knee- jerk reactions where there are these

          3  crisis like that.  But I am not so certain that the

          4  Council members and their offices are used as they

          5  should be used in crises.

          6                 All 51 members reach everyone in the

          7  City of New York.  And it is not a time when it

          8  should only be to your agencies to do that.  We are

          9  also an outlet.  You talked about what you advised

         10  people to do, and hand- washing.  And my question is

         11  in terms of the flu, are there any correlation to

         12  all the other health and disease, for instance,

         13  whooping cough, which is absolutely on the rise in

         14  the City of New York.  And I know how devastating

         15  that is, I had that as a kid, and it is brutal.  And

         16  so, I think you stated that it is not actually the

         17  flu virus, but there are other illnesses that can

         18  trigger that off.

         19                 So what I am saying is, I think, even

         20  though your Department is wonderful in letting us

         21  know and alerting that everybody should get that.  I

         22  think you need to use our offices more, I have said

         23  this before.  Because we, literally, have our pulse

         24  on all the people of the City of New York, and we

         25  can reach them faster through our organizations, not
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          2  only the senior centers, but in civic associations.

          3  We can reach them in vast sources, and we need to

          4  help to do that.  And I really feel that at this

          5  time as much as you have done, and it is really

          6  wonderful that you have, there needed to be another

          7  stretch.  And I think that the Council members could

          8  have been extremely helpful.  And there are times

          9  when we need to look at that, and look at that part

         10  of government, and recognize how much they are

         11  needed.  And I think this is an incident where it

         12  certainly is.

         13                 I know that I have been asked, why

         14  are not school teachers on that list?  When I think

         15  of how these health issues are passed in very closed

         16  quarters, and the number of teachers in the school

         17  system, the number of kids that pass on from one to

         18  the other, to the other, I don't know why they are

         19  not included. Not all of them are 65, that is quite

         20  true.  But at the same time, they don't leave the

         21  classrooms to wash their hands all the time,

         22  although, they should, but they run 40- minute

         23  periods, and hour- periods.

         24                 So, I don't know, could you address

         25  some of that? And these questions are not because I
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          2  don't think you are doing a fine job, I think you

          3  are.  But I am also one who recognizes that the

          4  health condition of the City of New York, with all

          5  your efforts, and I say this publicly, we are seeing

          6  illnesses that were eradicated many, many years ago,

          7  and we must do something. And that means like

          8  everybody, to see that we start the same process

          9  again.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Let me

         11  address a couple of your concerns.  One, I hear what

         12  you are saying about utilizing the City Council

         13  members.  And we did try to get, I think, did

         14  successfully get a letter out to the City Council

         15  about the information, and will continue to keep you

         16  apprised of it.  And certainly, I think in a local

         17  kind of a way, you know, we should work more closely

         18  with you.

         19                 In terms of the line issues, that has

         20  been a challenge to deal with.  We cannot forbid

         21  anybody from getting up at 3:00 in the morning and

         22  getting on line, and lining up, if that is what they

         23  want to do.  However, what we did do a few things.

         24  Number one, we have taken, if we are using our

         25  existing center, we have reconfigured them to some
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          2  degree to make sure that there are places for people

          3  to sit, even if that means encroaching on other

          4  clinic services, ordering more chairs, et cetera.

          5  And so we have had people, you know, use the entire

          6  building, if need be, as a waiting area, if that is,

          7  you know, an option.

          8                 Second, we have worked with the MTA

          9  to get buses so that people can sit on buses as they

         10  wait.

         11                 And third of all, in some cases, we

         12  have actually switched the location.  We just

         13  recognize that some of our buildings are really,

         14  just cannot handle the volume.  And so we have been

         15  active in working with a lot of other partners, the

         16  City University of New York, the Parks Department,

         17  the Office of Emergency Management in locating other

         18  facilities in those neighborhoods that were larger,

         19  that could accommodate the needs of this population,

         20  as well as the higher volume that we are expecting,

         21  increasing, you know, staff.  And so that has been

         22  our response in a couple of places.

         23                 And I think that, although, there

         24  still is waiting, it has been less waiting on line,

         25  it has been waiting inside a facility, which I think
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          2  is clearly preferable.

          3                 In terms of the teachers, I hear what

          4  you are saying.  You know, but I think in the

          5  setting of a vaccine shortage, our first

          6  responsibility is to recommend that people who are

          7  at an increased risk for bad outcomes.  And bad

          8  outcomes in the setting of influenza is death, you

          9  know, get vaccine, really number one in line.  And

         10  then the chronic illness folks are clearly there as

         11  well.  And so that is why CDC has not recommended

         12  the less than 64- year- old adult populations to get

         13  vaccine.

         14                 Not that, you know, again, in a

         15  routine year we wouldn't recommend that.  But this

         16  year we are very, very focused on decreasing, or

         17  getting the vaccine to the people at highest risk.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.  I

         19  understand that, and I wasn't making a point that

         20  people had to wait, and they shouldn't wait.  It was

         21  a question of what we would do with the overload.

         22  If anything, this year has certainly demonstrated

         23  that you have certainly sparked, put what people's

         24  responsibility is to their health, their care, and

         25  the need to get the flu vaccine.  That would
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          2  indicate that for next year, and I takes a year to

          3  do all this stuff, is how do you compare for

          4  hopefully everyone is assuming the same

          5  responsibility without panic setting in?  And I

          6  think that is the question that needs to be

          7  addressed, and how do you go about doing that?

          8                 Because certainly, if they are aware

          9  now, and then they are not next year, then none of

         10  us have done our job.  And we must see that they

         11  continue to do that.  So I think, and I repeat

         12  again, that certainly Council members know where the

         13  large spaces are, and can certainly let you know

         14  about that in every other way.  I would suggest that

         15  to prepare for next year, that you have to use all

         16  the resources.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Our

         18  flu vaccination effort, even though there is sort of

         19  a flu vaccine season, is essentially year- round.

         20  We work on it, you know the planning part of it for

         21  the entire year.  Spend much of the summer sort of

         22  outreaching to different groups.  We have

         23  immunization coalitions that we get together with,

         24  and partners, very important, like Visiting Nurse

         25  Service, which every year does such a great job in
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          2  terms of helping us out, putting on these clinics.

          3  And so, we have actually had a very, very big plan

          4  for this year, in terms of what was happening.

          5  Unfortunately, we had to scrap large parts of that

          6  plan, because of the shortage.

          7                 But clearly, when the season is over,

          8  as soon as the season is over, we have to go back to

          9  what our original plan was, which was increasing

         10  rates among seniors and other folks at high risk,

         11  but also add on, what I hope you are right, is

         12  increasing awareness and demand that will occur next

         13  year.  And hopefully, if we have the full compliment

         14  of vaccine that we need, we really can get larger

         15  numbers in terms of, for a percentage of

         16  participation than we ever have had in the past.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         18  much.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you,

         20  Council member. Just quickly before I call on

         21  Council Member Stewart, we do or we don't have

         22  enough vaccines to make sure that all high- risk New

         23  York City residents get them?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We do

         25  not have that right now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And if that, the

          3  recognition that we don't have enough, which by the

          4  way I very much appreciate if that is assessment,

          5  you saying that on the record. Because at other

          6  times, not anything about the three sitting at the

          7  table, in government, people have not always said

          8  when we didn't have what we needed.  And I think it

          9  is always better just to put it out there, even if

         10  it is bad news, it is better to say it.  So I

         11  appreciate that.

         12                 Is that a change from what we have

         13  been saying or what we thought the situation was?

         14  Because I can be totally wrong, but I thought I have

         15  recalled points in the process where the

         16  Commissioner had said, he felt we did have enough.

         17  This is not to say he was misleading or anything

         18  like that.  The situation, obviously, just changed.

         19  But is that a change?  I also could be recalling it

         20  incorrectly.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Not

         22  really, because, again, the vaccine right now is

         23  held onto by the manufacturer that has the good

         24  vaccine and by the CDC.  We anticipate getting some

         25  of that vaccine.
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          2                 But if you are asking me today, do we

          3  have enough vaccine in New York City to deal with

          4  all the at- risk population, the answer is no.  But

          5  we are anticipating getting more vaccine into the

          6  City, and therefore, more out to hospitals, nursing

          7  homes, et cetera, that will help in that situation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Do you anticipate

          9  by the end of the shot giving period, I am sure

         10  there is a far better term for it than that, the

         11  SGP, you want to call it, do you anticipate that by

         12  the end of that time, we will have received the full

         13  amount we need to cover all the high- risk people,

         14  or could you just not know the answer to that yet?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  At

         16  this stage we don't know the answer.  And I think

         17  that alludes to the fact that we don't have all the

         18  information that we would like to have at this

         19  moment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right, which goes

         21  back to kind of our earlier point that the federal

         22  government is clearly, whoever was or wasn't to

         23  blame for why we have this problem, clearly the

         24  federal government is not getting us enough

         25  information on what we are and are not going to get
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          2  in other matters.

          3                 Thank you very much.  Council Member

          4  Stewart.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

          6  Madam Chair. I want to go back to basics.  I want to

          7  go back to basics because I am getting mixed

          8  information here.

          9                 The flu season starts usually around

         10  December, isn't it, or it is based on the factor of

         11  climate.  In other words, if we have an early

         12  winter, the flu season usually starts earlier.  If

         13  we really didn't have a winter stuff, this flu

         14  season is less and it is milder.  Isn't that the

         15  case?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I

         17  would not agree. I would say that flu season,

         18  typically in this part of the world starts in mid or

         19  so to the end of December.  Although, clearly we

         20  have flu now as we have seen in the two nursing home

         21  outbreaks. Flu is a little bit unpredictable in

         22  terms of it is, you know, its ability to affect

         23  people.  So for example, last year is a good

         24  example, we had case reports from the western part

         25  of the United States that had early flu, where we
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          2  had cases in November. And there were also some very

          3  well publicized case reports about flu in children.

          4  And we are all bracing for a bigger flu outbreak,

          5  and it turns out that it was just early, it wasn't

          6  any bigger.  But it did come earlier than usual.

          7                 It is a little bit hard to predict

          8  and to relate to the weather.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Say that

         10  again?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  It is

         12  a little bit difficult to predict the, you know, the

         13  extent of the flu outbreak, the time when it starts

         14  and its relationship to weather in this part of the

         15  country.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         17  So when is the ideal time for the flu shot, when is

         18  the ideal time?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:

         20  Generally speaking the ideal time of flu shot is

         21  mid- October to the end of November. But certainly

         22  into December can, you know, will be fine.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, I

         24  understand all of that.  And we also know that a flu

         25  shot is only good before you get the flu.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:

          3  Correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  When you,

          5  after you have the flu it is no good anymore, even

          6  after it is no good for that particular strain.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.  So

          9  when you say basically that we also made it clear

         10  that since flu usually does not circulate to a

         11  significant degree until December, that there is no

         12  immediate need to get the flu shot.  What you are

         13  saying basically is that you are waiting for the flu

         14  to get flu shots.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  No,

         16  let me, can I go back?  What I meant is that the

         17  announcement of the unavailability, the failure of

         18  the Chiron was in early October. The flu, or

         19  somewhere around October 5th, if my recollection,

         20  serves me correctly.  So people did not have to go

         21  out that day, or that week and get flu vaccination.

         22  But we do, and today is November 8th, you still

         23  have, people still have the rest of November to be

         24  exactly on time in terms of getting vaccinations. I

         25  do not mean to state or imply that we are waiting
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          2  for flu to come into the City.

          3                 What I just said was, what I meant

          4  was, on that day of the announcement, it did not

          5  have to be done that day or that week, there still

          6  was plenty of time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I understand

          8  what you are saying.  But what you have written here

          9  is something completely different.  And I just want

         10  the public to understand that, listen, the people

         11  that are at- risk ought to have that shot before

         12  sometime in December, when we have the flu really

         13  rampant all over the place.  Because you do not want

         14  to give them the shot when they are attacked by the

         15  flu, that is what I am talking about.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  That

         17  is correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:   So, you

         19  know, I just want you to look at that sentence

         20  again, and to correct that.

         21                 What is the percentage at- risk in

         22  the City that we feel that is still not had their

         23  shots, what percentage of the people that are at-

         24  risk, do you feel right now, that have not had their

         25  shots?  You know a rough percentage, about 10
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          2  percent, 50 percent, 75 percent, what percentage?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  It is

          4  hard to sort out, and the reason why is because it

          5  is not always clear that all the vaccine that went

          6  there necessarily went to high- risk individuals.

          7  We don't have a surveillance system, or counting

          8  system to understand, you know, who got the shot,

          9  especially in private doctor's offices, et cetera.

         10  So any, you know, it is probably between, I am sorry

         11  the question was, how many did not get, how many at

         12  risk did not get?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, what

         14  percentage did not have their shots?  The reason why

         15  I am asking the question is that we talk about an

         16  emergency response system, and we do not know what

         17  we have responded to.  How many people that are at

         18  risk have gotten it, and those that did not get it,

         19  so that at least we can deal with those folks.  We

         20  are talking about a season that starts in December,

         21  we are at, today is the 8th of November, and we

         22  don't know how many people are at risk, so at least

         23  we can deal with those people.  Or how many, at

         24  least, had the shot.

         25                 I am not talking about you and I, we
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          2  can go without that shot.  I am talking about the

          3  people at risk, the nursing homes, the long- term

          4  facilities, and things like that, that is what I am

          5  talking about.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  So, it

          7  is hard for me to give an absolute number, but let

          8  me try to comment to give you some framework.

          9                 We know that most of the nursing

         10  homes in New York City ordered Chiron vaccine, that

         11  is the vaccine that is never going to get there.  So

         12  that we know that the majority, unless there was the

         13  nursing homes got it from somewhere else.  The

         14  majority of nursing home residents in the City,

         15  still need to be vaccinated.  And it is clearly an

         16  extremely, extremely high priority for us to make

         17  sure happens before December.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So in other

         19  words, we can go back to Council Member Nelson's

         20  question, so we can say, if we don't get to those

         21  folks, we can definitely have what we call an

         22  epidemic of the flu, based on what you just said.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Yes,

         24  it is complicated by the fact, I will answer yes

         25  with a star.  It is complicated by the fact that it
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          2  has been shown in different studies that some people

          3  in that age category, who are chronically

          4  debilitated, may not, may get the vaccine and may

          5  not develop an immune response to it.  So that is

          6  why, even sometimes when you have a good

          7  immunization rate in nursing home, there still can

          8  be an outbreak, a localized outbreak in that nursing

          9  home.  So it is a little bit complicated.

         10                 But yes, we want to make sure that

         11  individuals who are residents of long- term care

         12  facilities in the City get vaccinated.  And if we

         13  don't, there is going to be much worse problems than

         14  in prior years.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I was in the

         16  Caribbean over, during the past week.  And I was in

         17  a place called Saint Kitts.  And someone called me

         18  from Canada and said, do you know of all these

         19  people after the election, how all of these people

         20  are rushing over to Canada to get a flu shot?  Have

         21  you ever heard anything like that?  Did you hear

         22  about the influx of people running over to Canada

         23  for flu shots?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We

         25  have only heard anecdotally, you know, from the
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          2  newspapers and sources like that. We have not heard

          3  personally from people who say, I went to Canada and

          4  got a vaccine.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

          6  I wasn't trying to be difficult, I just wanted

          7  folks, I just wanted them to understand that the

          8  public need to know that they don't need a shot when

          9  they have the flu.  It is before they get the flu,

         10  and that is the only time that it is going to

         11  effective.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  That

         13  is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         15  thank you very much.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         19  just want to say, Council member, I don't think you

         20  are being difficult at all.  Part of your questions,

         21  I think, raise an area that were just time wise we

         22  are not going to be able to get to today, which are

         23  more LaRay's part of the process, which is, and I

         24  just think we are not time wise, because I know that

         25  you all have to leave around three are going to be
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          2  able to get to, as much, which is what is are,

          3  although, we cannot say exactly how much more flu we

          4  are going to get than we did last year.  But it is

          5  going to be on some level worse, because probably

          6  less people have gotten the shots.  So you both

          7  referenced on some level what we are doing to

          8  prepare for that, but I really wanted had hoped we

          9  would be able to explore that a little more than we

         10  did today.  So I will figure out the best venue to

         11  do that.  And I think some of your questions,

         12  Council member, really speak to that, how do we make

         13  sure we are more prepared for this that we know is

         14  coming, which we didn't know this problem was

         15  coming, and what did we learn from this, how we

         16  dealt with well, and maybe could have done it better

         17  with what the problem we have had to do that even

         18  better.

         19                 Chairperson Dilan had a couple of

         20  final questions, and I may be, just because of time,

         21  forwarding some questions through OLA to guys to do

         22  some wrap- up.  Council Member Dilan, I think we

         23  have some time before they leave, we will try to get

         24  Council Member Nelson.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Yes, I guess this
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          2  question is best suited for Ms. Brown, and if it is

          3  not, maybe one of the other members of the panel

          4  could chime in.

          5                 To your knowledge is the City doing

          6  anything, and again, I will say it that it is, you

          7  know from my perspective and I think from the

          8  prospective of my colleagues, no one in the

          9  Administration is to blame for all of this.  I think

         10  all that is clear, and I will say that before I make

         11  my statement, or ask my question.

         12                 Is the City doing anything unique in

         13  light of these circumstances?  I know like the State

         14  of Illinois, for instance, is trying to get FDA

         15  approval for a European vaccine. I know that the

         16  State of Massachusetts has limited, you know, their

         17  reserves for people who are 75 years or older, here

         18  we have 65.  I know one other jurisdiction that has

         19  asked their private providers to let them know if

         20  they have any excess stream available.  Is the City

         21  of New York doing anything to that regard, to your

         22  knowledge?

         23                 MS. BROWN:  I believe my colleague,

         24  Dr. Weisfuse, talked about some of the things that

         25  the Department is working on with the State
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          2  Department of Health.  But we also, as I mentioned

          3  in my presentation, we are also essentially

          4  following what the Centers for Disease Control have

          5  identified as the high- risk populations that

          6  require priority given the vaccine shortage.

          7                 So when you say is the City doing

          8  something in terms of, like these other states, I

          9  would say that even in your examples, most of the

         10  activity is at the State level in terms of FDA - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  There are some

         12  examples of municipalities taking some initiatives.

         13                 MS. BROWN:  Okay, right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  - - so that is

         15  why, maybe I should have cited it that way.

         16                 MS. BROWN:  Okay.  But in terms of

         17  the municipalities, we, as you see from this panel

         18  even, in the presentations given, we are working

         19  very closely with the Department of Health.  Because

         20  as a public health authority, we are going to take

         21  their lead as they take, as they yet garner their

         22  information with their recommendations.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Just

         24  to jump in on this part of the discussion, we have

         25  asked providers who have excess doses of vaccine to
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          2  give them back to us.  In some cases we have gotten

          3  donations of vaccine.

          4                 We have not agreed with the

          5  Massachusetts approach in terms of limiting the

          6  vaccine delivery to those over 75.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  And also

          8  understand I am not saying what other jurisdictions

          9  did was right or wrong.  I am just searching for

         10  more info.

         11                 MS. BROWN:  In terms within HHC - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I don't think he

         13  was - -

         14                 MS. BROWN:  Oh, I'm sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.

         16                 MS. BROWN:  In terms within HHC, as I

         17  also mentioned earlier, we made sure to assure that

         18  our patients most at risk, particularly in our long-

         19  term care facilities, and also our patients with

         20  high needs to made the CDC criteria, are the ones

         21  who are going to be given, who have been and will be

         22  given the vaccine in priority.  And as I also

         23  mentioned, in order to do that, we are doing

         24  internal redistribution, our facilities are making

         25  sure that if one facility doesn't have enough for
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          2  their high- risk patient population that we share

          3  that.  And as we get new supplies, we redistribute

          4  them.

          5                 Again, we believe that it is very,

          6  very important that we coordinate our efforts with

          7  the local Department of Health Authority.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, and Doctor,

          9  just finally, you mentioned that you have or the

         10  Department has reached out to private practitioners

         11  that have the stream.  What methods has the City

         12  used to reach out to these individuals?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  We

         14  have a couple of methods.

         15                 1.  Obviously, there has been press

         16  conferences with the Mayor and Doctor Frieden, the

         17  Commissioner of Health, to talk about flu vaccine

         18  shortages.

         19                 2.  We also have developed over the

         20  last several years, something called the Health

         21  Alert Network, which is dedicated to providing

         22  alerts and updates to providers across the City

         23  around emerging issues of any kind.  That has been

         24  in existence for several years now, and we have

         25  written several alerts or bulletins that we sent out
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          2  through the Health Alert Network to New York City

          3  providers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Quick, quick,

          6  quick.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Quick, quick,

          8  quick.  I think everybody thinks about this, but has

          9  it been professionally addressed, what is your

         10  opinion in the medical field, about shaking hands

         11  with people?  Is Donald Trump onto something here or

         12  what?  And should we be shaking hands, and if not,

         13  should DOH be leading the charge and saying, let's

         14  just salute each other? We can start something right

         15  here, today.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  I

         17  think that would be a problem for a politician,

         18  perhaps.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  You see that

         20  was hoping it wasn't.  I want to lay it at the

         21  medical doorstep.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE:  Okay.

         23  You know what I talked about was what we call

         24  respiratory etiquette, which does not preclude

         25  shaking hands, but it does mean covering your mouth
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          2  when you cough or sneeze, and then washing your

          3  hands.  And then not going into work or to school,

          4  if you are ill.  And we think that those are simple

          5  measures, but that actually could help decrease

          6  transmission of the influenza virus, but any other

          7  respiratory illness as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So it

          9  actually can adversely affect out health doing this.

         10    Okay, I just hope that message goes forward, and

         11  we could just even knock elbows, something.  But I

         12  think we are onto something big here, Doctor. Okay,

         13  thank you.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  SGP, okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We are going to

         17  have to wrap up this time with the Administration.

         18  As I said, there is certainly a lot to cover today.

         19  We did not clearly get to everything we wanted to

         20  get to, and I am not sure what the best format will

         21  be to address the other issues that we have not

         22  gotten to as it related to the distribution of the

         23  shots, but also as it relates to round two of this,

         24  so- to- speak, the people who will have, you know,

         25  more people who have the flu.  So we will be back in
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          2  touch with all of you about the best way to have

          3  that venue.

          4                 And I want to say, we were told what

          5  time you were going to leave before the hearing, but

          6  we have not met the commitment that the Commissioner

          7  made at our last hearing, which was three business

          8  days prior to the hearing, a written announcement of

          9  what time we would need you all to leave.  So, if we

         10  could, we have improved today, it wasn't during the

         11  hearing, but it was not what Commissioner Frieden

         12  had committed to.  We may not have communicated that

         13  to, our new rule, to HHC, so we should do that.  So

         14  if we could communicate back, I appreciate the

         15  progress, but we are not quite there, that would be

         16  great.

         17                 And we are going to call up, our next

         18  panel, slightly out of order, and we are going to

         19  call up the Greater New York Hospital Association,

         20  first, and then we will call up the rest of the

         21  panel.  And I want to thank Greater New York very

         22  much for their patience.  They did tell us last week

         23  that they had a time scheduling issue, which we were

         24  not really able to accommodate, so they are going to

         25  be late for their 3:30 meeting, and we are going to
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          2  tell them to tell that meeting it was our fault.

          3  And we are going to ask them to, they have provided

          4  16 pages of testimony, which I think will be very

          5  helpful to us as we coordinate with the private

          6  hospitals in our districts.  But we are going to ask

          7  them to try to summarize it for us, and then we will

          8  have questions, and then we will let you scoot out

          9  the door to get to your 3:30.

         10                 And then after they finish, we will

         11  then call up, so you should be kind of on deck,

         12  Jessica Walker, Karen Westervelt, Darryl Ng, and

         13  Joaquin Morante after Greater New York finishes.

         14  And if the representative from Senator Clinton's

         15  Office is here, if she could go over to the

         16  Sergeant's desk, so that we know she is here.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 Go right ahead, thanks very much.

         19                 MS. WALTMAN:  Thank you.  Thank you

         20  for the opportunity to appear, and thank you for

         21  trying to accommodate my schedule, I appreciate it.

         22  I am Susan Waltman.  I am Senior Vice- President and

         23  General Counsel at the Greater New York Hospital

         24  Association.  We represent the interest of 250

         25  hospitals and long- term care facilities
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          2  concentrated in the New York City region.

          3                 All of our members, and our members

          4  do include the New York City Health and Hospital

          5  Corporation, are not- for- profit or publicly

          6  sponsored institutions.  And as you might expect, we

          7  provide tertiary care, and the most basic primary

          8  care, given our role as the safety net for many of

          9  the communities that we serve. But we also serve in

         10  a different role that has become even more important

         11  since the September 11 attacks, and we recognize

         12  that we are the front line of the City's public

         13  health defense system and emergency response system.

         14    And it is those obligations that have caused us to

         15  create a number of systems that have helped us

         16  respond, we think, quite well to the current

         17  shortage, and prepare for the upcoming flu season.

         18                 Notwithstanding, that we feel we have

         19  done as well as we can with the systems that we have

         20  put in place, as we responded to the flu shortage,

         21  and prepared for the flu season. There is,

         22  obviously, the very real and immediate unmet need

         23  for vaccine by our members.  We have, therefore,

         24  requested the federal, the State, and the local

         25  governments to distribute the as yet undistributed
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          2  supplies of Aventis pasture vaccine, so that

          3  providers of very large numbers of high- risk

          4  populations and who have little or no vaccine.  And

          5  there are providers, there are members in our

          6  membership that have little or no vaccine, that they

          7  receive priority in the upcoming distributions, and

          8  that they receive a down payment against their

          9  future allocations so that they can begin to

         10  vaccinated their most vulnerable populations, as

         11  well as the health care workers who care for them

         12  every single day.

         13                 I do, in my written testimony, make

         14  two remarks with respect to the shortage itself.

         15  One on the supply side, and that is the fact that we

         16  do have in the country, and our country is reliant

         17  on a system that, obviously, by necessity does

         18  require the development of new vaccine each year.

         19  The technology as you heard from Doctor Weisfuse is

         20  one that does lend itself to contamination and

         21  failure, so that the country is looking at other

         22  ways to develop vaccines.  And it also does not

         23  create incentives for manufacturers to produce the

         24  vaccine.  So we have had significant problems over

         25  the years in terms of supply and delays in the
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          2  vaccine.

          3                 But I also comment that we have made

          4  our own, we have been too successful perhaps, on the

          5  demand side.  And that is we have encouraged

          6  everyone, high- risk or otherwise, to obtain the flu

          7  vaccine, something that we, as the hospital

          8  association in the City of New York through the

          9  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene have done.

         10  And we have increased that demand ourselves.

         11                 I have some statistics in the

         12  testimony that come from the CDC.  In 1980, the

         13  nation vaccinated less than 20 million people.  In

         14  1993 we vaccinated more people, but still 56

         15  million, less than, fewer than the number of doses

         16  that we have this year.  And we have tried over the

         17  intervening number of years to increase the

         18  immunization rate, such that over the last three

         19  years we have vaccinated more than 80 million people

         20  each year, and wanted to vaccinated more this year.

         21  So we have really increased the demand for

         22  immunization as a very simple public health measure

         23  to protect all of us.

         24                 With respect to the vaccine shortage

         25  and preparing for the flu season, there is a lot
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          2  that has worked well, and there are some unmet

          3  needs.  I am going to work through, I am going to

          4  talk through quickly, what has worked well.  Because

          5  I think we do need to focus on what works well and

          6  what we have put in place as a nation and as a

          7  region.  Because I think it helps us both in this

          8  situation and for all emergencies or other types of

          9  situations.

         10                 As a result of September 11th, we

         11  have worked very closely with the City, the State,

         12  and the federal government focusing very heavily on

         13  communications.  I think that has served us well in

         14  this situation.  You may be aware that the CDC

         15  immediately upon learning of the shortage had press

         16  conferences, had postings on its web site, set up

         17  provider conference calls in which we participated,

         18  and put out health advisories so that we could - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Who set up the

         20  calls, I didn't hear what you said?

         21                 MS. WALTMAN:  The Centers for Disease

         22  Control and HHS, which enabled us to have

         23  information immediately.  And that was a very

         24  important aspect of what has been put in place since

         25  September 11th and the Anthrax attacks.
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          2                 The State Department of Health

          3  similarly has put out very helpful advisories since

          4  then that go to the provides, that go to the public.

          5                 And I think on a more local level,

          6  the City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          7  have also done an excellent job of informing

          8  providers with respect to the shortage, the priority

          9  groups, how to prevent and how to treat the flu.

         10  And you have heard from Dr. Weisfuse some of the

         11  publications that they have put out.  We have made

         12  it our business to distribute those publications,

         13  those advisories as widely as possible.  We

         14  developed very extensive email lists that enable us

         15  in a very brief period of time to share all of this

         16  information from the CDC, the State, and the City to

         17  providers at many, many levels within our own

         18  institutions, so infection control, the emergency

         19  department, et cetera, get all of this information

         20  very quickly.

         21                 We have also developed some excellent

         22  data collection systems, which are very important in

         23  this particular circumstance in order to determine

         24  where the remaining supply should go.  We obviously

         25  have to match it up to the need.  You have heard
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          2  some references to the State's Health Emergency

          3  Response Data System, or HERDS, another system that

          4  was developed after September 11th in order to

          5  accommodate the myriad requests that are made of

          6  providers during emergencies.  The State Health

          7  Department used that system to collect almost in a

          8  24- hour period, virtually almost overnight,

          9  extensive information from all of the hospitals,

         10  because it is only hospitals that are on the system

         11  at this point in time, with respect to their

         12  ordering patterns, who ordered, how much, from

         13  Chiron, Aventis, how much do they have in stock, and

         14  what is their estimate of unmet need. Their estimate

         15  of high- risk population and corresponding with the

         16  unmet need within their institutions, looking at

         17  their high- risk populations and their health care

         18  workers, and how much more vaccine they need.

         19                 So the State Department of Health was

         20  truly really ahead of many other states with respect

         21  to the ability to collect the information.  They

         22  collected the same kind of information, but not

         23  quite as efficiently from other types of providers,

         24  and are compiling that, and that information goes

         25  into the CDC and is helping them to decide how to
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          2  distribute the remaining supply.

          3                 The City, as you know, has an

          4  excellent probing on a most sophisticated syndromic

          5  surveillance system, which allows them to identify

          6  disease outbreaks and track influenza, which is

          7  something that is in place all the time.  They

          8  obtain information from our emergency department

          9  obtaining, I think they get representatives 75

         10  percent of emergency department visits on a daily

         11  basis.  They get information from EMS calls,

         12  pharmacies, et cetera, so they can identify

         13  respiratory symptoms and be able to track disease

         14  outbreaks of all sorts, but in particular, influenza

         15  outbreaks and the development of the cases, at this

         16  point.  And we still rely very heavily on provider

         17  reporting, basic reporting by providers in terms of

         18  influenza outbreaks, you have seen that already.  I

         19  think our members are very good at respecting their

         20  obligations to report, because they do get excellent

         21  assistance from the City Health Department in terms

         22  of managing outbreaks.

         23                 We have developed strong

         24  partnerships, I think, all towards the end of making

         25  sure our members can provide the best services
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          2  possible to their patients, and we cannot

          3  underestimate, I think, the partnership that we have

          4  put in place since September 11th with the City

          5  Health Department, with the Office of Emergency

          6  Management, and state and federal governments.

          7                 We have extensive plans and protocols

          8  in place, should we need to deal with a particularly

          9  heavy influenza, or a severe influenza season.  We,

         10  as institutions, obviously, anticipate disease

         11  outbreaks every day, is what we deal with. And so

         12  the State and the City, and our members, have put in

         13  place extensive protocols for infectious diseases,

         14  the State Department of Health has put several

         15  advisories recently however, reinforcing what we

         16  need to do in our emergency departments anticipating

         17  the flu season.  As well as reinforcing the possible

         18  surge of patients that we might receive in terms of

         19  emergency department overcrowding, infection control

         20  within our institutions, et cetera, just reinforcing

         21  all of the things that we have in place, and should

         22  remember to keep in place during the flu season.

         23                 I think we should not lose track of

         24  the fact that, at least as far as we can tell, there

         25  has been significant confines with the CDC priority
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          2  list.  We very quickly, after the announcement of

          3  the high- risk groups by the CDC, our Executive

          4  Committee adopted a resolution where it said that

          5  all providers should respect the CDC's priority

          6  groups, anybody who has excess vaccine should share

          7  it, and we will help facilitate it.  That was

          8  something that we thought was very important to

          9  indicate to the public, to our providers, that we

         10  will be respecting.

         11                 The CDC priority groups, you may also

         12  know as Dr. Weisfuse also referenced, the State

         13  Department of Health has said that the CDC's

         14  priority groups for administering the vaccine is the

         15  standard of care in New York, and any provider who

         16  does not follow them, meaning giving the vaccine to

         17  someone who is not in a priority group. May face

         18  sanctions with the State Department of Health.

         19                 Those are the things that have worked

         20  well, but we still have unmet need, and that is why

         21  we have written to the Secretary of HHS, our

         22  Congressional Delegation, the CDC.  We also have

         23  spoken with the State Health Department and our City

         24  Health Department.  In each case, underscoring the

         25  need to make sure that providers of large numbers of
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          2  high- risk populations, and who have no vaccine or

          3  very little vaccine, receive priority in the

          4  upcoming distributions, and that they receive down

          5  payments against their future allocations.  Again, I

          6  emphasize that there are some very large hospitals,

          7  and many, many nursing homes who have no vaccine for

          8  their most vulnerable populations or their health

          9  care workers.

         10                 We have also urged the federal

         11  government to expedite its review process for

         12  bringing supplies of vaccine in from other

         13  countries.  The FDA has identified, I think, five

         14  million possible doses of vaccine that could be

         15  brought in.  They are looking at the production

         16  facilities and the supplies for the purpose of

         17  bringing them in.  They will be bringing them, we

         18  understand, if they approve them under what is

         19  referred to as an investigational, new, drug

         20  protocol, which will involve certain procedures by

         21  the providers who administer them and special

         22  informed consent by the recipients.  But they have

         23  indicated that all of this will not be in place

         24  until, at the earliest, the end of November, early

         25  December.  So we have asked them to expedite that
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          2  process so that we can supplement our own supply.

          3                 And finally, I think we all have an

          4  obligation to make sure the public message is on

          5  target.  If you are healthy, forego the vaccine.  We

          6  have encouraged everybody to get vaccine, and now

          7  all of a sudden we have to reverse the message.  It

          8  is unfortunate, but we do have the priority groups

          9  who do need the vaccine.  If you are in a high-

         10  priority group, we urge you to make clear to your

         11  providers that you have not yet gotten the vaccine,

         12  so that when we do get future supplies that we can

         13  make sure it matches the need.  And you have heard

         14  this term today, respiratory etiquette, but I think

         15  it is important for all of us in order to prevent

         16  our getting the flu or transmitting the flu. It

         17  sounds like the kinds of things that your mother

         18  would tell, but they are very basic and they are

         19  very important to infection control, so we are

         20  encouraging them, as well as in our emergency

         21  departments and among our providers.

         22                 In summary, I think that today's

         23  hearing is very, very important.  It has raised very

         24  important issues with respect to the vaccine supply

         25  and our response to it.  We are hopeful, obviously,
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          2  that there is a mild flu season, we think we are

          3  ready for flu season whether it is mild or severe,

          4  because of all of the systems that we have put in

          5  place.

          6                 We do urge your support for the

          7  requests that we have made of the federal, State,

          8  and local government that as there are

          9  distributions, that those who have had no vaccine or

         10  little vaccine as providers take priority.  We think

         11  that that will help them get a jump on vaccinating

         12  their most vulnerable populations.  I think it will

         13  also raise public confidence that there is a more

         14  equitable distribution of the vaccine moving

         15  forward.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         18  much.  Just three quick things, because I know you

         19  have to, you are now officially late.  Are there

         20  members, either hospitals or nursing, I think you

         21  have some nursing home members too, right?

         22                 MS. WALTMAN:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Who you know

         24  don't have any shots at all, or are there some

         25  members who you know are just very under, I mean,

                                                            115

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  everyone is somewhat under stocked, but are

          3  particularly under stocked?

          4                 MS. WALTMAN:  The answer is that

          5  among the hospitals, there are some very large

          6  hospitals who are really under stocked.  They end

          7  up, they will get their, they have gotten their

          8  pediatric doses, because that is Aventis supply. But

          9  if they ordered entirely through Chiron, they have

         10  nothing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And you have some

         12  members who did order it.

         13                 MS. WALTMAN:  We have some hospital

         14  members who ordered only through Chiron.  That

         15  happens to be a greater problem in our nursing home

         16  population, our nursing homes.  I think it is an

         17  accurate number to say 60 or 70 percent were Chiron

         18  dependent.  Those are, obviously, very vulnerable

         19  populations, and we are trying to get supply to

         20  some, some supply to them.

         21                 That is why we are saying that, I

         22  mean, I just want to explain something.  It is

         23  difficult to look at some of the CDC distribution

         24  plans, and understand where the supply is going.

         25  But what they have referred to as phase one, is
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          2  primarily aimed at certain programs, important

          3  programs, like vaccine for children.  But to the

          4  extent it has nursing homes or hospitals on that

          5  list, as being phase one priority recipients, they

          6  tend to be those who have ordered Aventis, and did

          7  not get it yet.

          8                 The Chiron customers in the private

          9  hospital or long- term care world end up coming at

         10  the end of that cue.  And that raises, in our view,

         11  a significant problem because there are a lot of

         12  Aventis customers who have some vaccine.  And we

         13  think that the people with no vaccine should come

         14  before them, in order that there can be some degree,

         15  some penetration of immunization within those

         16  particular providers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you could

         18  forward to us the various communications or advocacy

         19  materials that you have between Greater New York and

         20  the folks from the federal level, we would

         21  appreciate that, because then we could do similar

         22  letters, you know, and advocacy, talk to the

         23  Congressional Delegation, et cetera, to try to, you

         24  know, push, - -

         25                 MS. WALTMAN:  Reinforcement.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: - -

          3  reinforcement, I couldn't think of that word,

          4  reinforce the message that you guys are trying to

          5  send.  Have you, what have the hospitals done as it

          6  relates to being prepared for more patients, have

          7  they alerted staff that, you know, vacation requests

          8  might have to be foregone during flu seasons, or you

          9  know, anything of that nature to try to, has there

         10  been greater ordering of the medications, or

         11  anything like that, that has happened in

         12  anticipation?

         13                 MS. WALTMAN:  Well two weeks ago, the

         14  State Department of Health did put out a memorandum

         15  or an advisory, which it does every year right

         16  before flu season, which does reinforce the

         17  emergency department protocols.  Reviewing staffing

         18  levels is one of the recommendations.  So we do this

         19  before flu season every year.  We do experience

         20  differing levels of emergency department and in-

         21  patient overcrowding.

         22                 I will say one thing, you know, we

         23  are a group of hospitals that has have significant

         24  financial troubles.  We have had a number of

         25  hospitals close over the last two years.  So we do,
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          2  as the system contracts, obviously, there is less

          3  elasticity for a lot of reasons, but I think that we

          4  are very well prepared as a group of hospitals for

          5  influenza season, in general, for emergency

          6  preparedness, in particular.  And I think that we

          7  are just reinforcing and reviewing the protocols

          8  that we put in place every time, this time every

          9  year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

         11  Stewart, you had a quick question for Greater New

         12  York?  And then we will let you go.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, I

         14  just wanted to hear what your take on, I asked the

         15  question earlier, and I think you may have heard the

         16  question, is that you just spoke about some doom and

         17  gloom as far as not having.  And then, not having

         18  the shots for quite a number of the institutions.

         19  But also you said that you prepared, and you know,

         20  you give me that mix feeling.  Do you have enough

         21  for the hospital, or you do not have the enough of

         22  it to deal with the people at high- risk?

         23                 MS. WALTMAN:  We do not have enough

         24  vaccine.  We are hopeful that as more gets

         25  distributed, it will be distributed in a way that we
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          2  can protect our most vulnerable patients.

          3                 When I talked about preparedness

          4  however, I meant to focus on preparedness - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  If they get

          6  the flu.

          7                 MS. WALTMAN: - -  for influenza

          8  season.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.  The

         10  other question I have, and the question is, what

         11  percentage do you feel, right now, let's assume that

         12  we didn't get any more vaccine, and just to deal

         13  with what we believe that we have right now, and the

         14  folks who have been vaccinated, what percentage of

         15  the high- risk do you think would be taken care of?

         16                 MS. WALTMAN:  What I can say is based

         17  on the way questions were asked on October 20th,

         18  when the State Department of Health asked questions

         19  of hospitals based on how much supply you have, and

         20  what is your remaining unmet need.  So it is a

         21  snapshot in time.  And in New York City we found

         22  that basically we have enough vaccine to meet half

         23  of the then existing unmet need, in the hospital

         24  corporation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  In the
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          2  hospital corporation.

          3                 MS. WALTMAN:  Hospital in- patients,

          4  taken into account health care workers.  But you

          5  just heard, and I would be interested in what the

          6  sequence is, HHC, for example, mentioned that they

          7  have recently received more vaccine.  So that would

          8  help address that unmet need in New York City

          9  hospitals.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  When you

         11  speak about hospitals, you speak in general about

         12  nursing homes and other long- term care facilities.

         13                 MS. WALTMAN:  No, Sir, I am sorry.

         14  My answer was only at it relates to the hospitals

         15  who provided input to the State's system called

         16  HERDS.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.

         18                 MS. WALTMAN:  Nursing homes are not

         19  yet on that system.  They don't yet, they are being

         20  added very quickly, I might tell you.  Because the

         21  State saw how easy it was, or how important it was

         22  to have the ability to collect information through

         23  this particular system.

         24                 What I do understand is that nursing

         25  homes, approximately 60 to 70 percent of the nursing
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          2  homes in our membership, which are not only the not-

          3  for- profits, were primarily Chiron customers, and

          4  therefore, have not been able to meet the needs of

          5  their patients.  And they are, obviously, we hope in

          6  a high- priority category for future distributions,

          7  as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Considering

          9  the fact that these nursing homes and these long-

         10  term facilities are where most of our high- risk

         11  patients are.  It means then that even when you talk

         12  about 50 percent of the hospital, it is really a

         13  small percentage of the high- risk, if you have to

         14  take it in total.

         15                 MS. WALTMAN:  I don't know how to

         16  compare the two in terms of numbers.  I do want to

         17  say one thing though, that has occurred.  There has

         18  been sharing within networks of health care

         19  providers, and that is why I emphasized that what we

         20  know was only a snapshot on October 20th, for

         21  example.  We have seen that hospitals within their

         22  own networks have shared their limited vaccine, or

         23  somehow their full supply, because they ordered all

         24  through Aventis, have shared their vaccine with

         25  nursing homes in their own network.  Even though the
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          2  nursing home might have ordered independently.

          3                 But you are right, you are absolutely

          4  right, the unmet need as a percentage in a nursing

          5  home would be higher, if they ordered only through

          6  Chiron, because that high- risk population, because

          7  the whole population is high risk.  So that is

          8  correct.

          9                 How it looks today, how it relates to

         10  total numbers in New York City, I do not have the

         11  ability to do that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I appreciate

         13  your knowledge and your explanation.  Thank you very

         14  much for your testimony.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         16  much.  And again, I really appreciate your time

         17  flexibility.

         18                 MS. WALTMAN:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And obviously,

         20  there are questions we did not get to, just like

         21  with the Administration, and we will follow- up with

         22  you and Lloyd on that.  And tell the 3:30 it was our

         23  fault.

         24                 MS. WALTMAN:  It's not necessary.

         25  And you do have attached to the testimony the letter
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          2  that we sent to Secretary Thompson.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Oh, terrific,

          4  okay, great.

          5                 MS. WALTMAN:  We have sent several,

          6  and we will get you the letter to our Congressional

          7  Delegation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, that would

          9  be great. Thank you very much.

         10                 Next we are going to call up Jessica

         11  Walker from United Neighborhood Houses, Karen

         12  Westervelt from the Ryan William Chelsea - -  Brian

         13  William Chelsea, you will say your own name, it is

         14  too long.  Darryl Ng from GMHC, and Joaquin Morante

         15  from the Commissioner on the Public's Health System.

         16    And then they are going to be followed, so that

         17  folks can be on deck, by Nathaniel Hupert of Cornell

         18  Medical College, David Keepnews of the New York

         19  Academy of Medicine, Dr. Christianson of Visiting

         20  Nurse Service, and I don't know if David Calsey is

         21  here of Mount Sinai, if he is, if you could just let

         22  it be known that he is here, and also Judith Arroyo.

         23                 Great, we will bring over another

         24  chair for you in a second, so just sit tight.  And

         25  why don't you go right ahead and get started.
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          2                 MS. WALKER:  Good afternoon.  My name

          3  is Jessica Walker, and I am a Policy Analyst at

          4  United Neighborhood Houses, also known as UNH.

          5                 UNH is the federation of 35

          6  settlement houses that benefit half of a million New

          7  Yorkers from infants to adults to seniors with

          8  educational programs, employment assistance, human

          9  services, and cultural activities at 350 locations

         10  throughout New York City.  Founded in 1990 to bridge

         11  the common interests and concerns of New York

         12  settlement houses and the communities they serve,

         13  UNH and its member agencies today, comprise one of

         14  the City's largest human service systems.

         15                 It is because of this historic and

         16  continued commitment to our communities that we

         17  appear before you today, to discuss this important

         18  issue.  Thank you for the opportunity.

         19                 As you know there is a great deal of

         20  fear and confusion associated with this year's

         21  shortage of the flu vaccine.  Intense media

         22  coverage, most of which has been responsible, and

         23  the emphasis of this issue in the recent

         24  Presidential Election, have significantly raised the

         25  nation's consciousness about the vaccine shortage,
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          2  and the seriousness of influenza, in general.  Some

          3  seniors are learning for the first time that if they

          4  contract the disease they are considered at high

          5  risk for experiencing drastic outcomes, such as

          6  death.  As such, many seniors are very anxious to

          7  receive the shot, even if they have never done so

          8  before.

          9                 Several of the senior centers within

         10  our settlement house network offer annual flu shots

         11  to members of their communities in conjunction with

         12  the City's Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         13  Our member agencies are reporting that they do feel

         14  the affects of the vaccine shortage this year. Thus

         15  far, many have received fewer vaccines than usual,

         16  and are feeling a greater demand for them by the

         17  public.  As all New Yorkers, we hope that the City's

         18  request for 600,000 additional vaccines from the

         19  national Center for Disease Control is granted.

         20                 In the meantime, we would like to

         21  encourage the City to continue using the human

         22  services infrastructure as a resource in combating

         23  this shortage and the public anxiety that surrounds

         24  it.  Right now, health officials and the media are

         25  working hard to inform the public about who should
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          2  get the vaccine this year, where they can go to get

          3  it, what preventative measures they can take, even

          4  if they do not get a flu shot, and what they should

          5  do if they happen to catch the flu.  We hope that

          6  the community- based organizations that interface

          7  with seniors and others will also continue to be

          8  called upon to help educate and quell the fears of

          9  New Yorkers.  This is work that many CBOs, within

         10  our settlement house network and outside, do

         11  naturally, but which can be doubly effective if done

         12  in tandem with the City's efforts.

         13                 We realize that this is an extremely

         14  trying time for our nation and our city.  We stand

         15  ready to help in any way that we can.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We will just go

         18  through everybody, and then do questions all

         19  together at the end, if that is okay.  Thank you.

         20                 MS. WESTERVELT:  Good afternoon.  My

         21  name is Karen Westervelt, Executive Director of the

         22  Ryan/Chelsea- Clinton Community Health Center.

         23                 Thank you, Chairwoman Quinn and all

         24  Council members for inviting the family of William

         25  F. Ryan Community Health Centers to speak with you
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          2  today on our experiences, to date, with this year's

          3  influenza vaccine shortage, and the potential grave

          4  consequences this may have on our most vulnerable

          5  New Yorkers.

          6                 The family of William R. Ryan

          7  Community Health Centers is fortunate to have

          8  received a partial portion of our influenza vaccine

          9  order.  We received approximately one- half of our

         10  order because we ordered from two suppliers to

         11  minimize the possibility of not receiving any

         12  influenza vaccine should some type of problem arise.

         13    Although this method results in a somewhat higher

         14  cost, because of the way the group purchasing

         15  methodology works, this foresight enabled our three

         16  community health centers: William R. Ryan, Ryan-

         17  NENA, and Ryan/Chelsea Clinton, to implement

         18  measures to ensure that the majority of our patients

         19  who are at highest risks for complications from

         20  influenza were able to receive their vaccinations.

         21  This is fortunate, for as you know, community health

         22  centers provide care other under- served

         23  populations, communities of color, the homeless,

         24  victims of violence, persons with HIV/AIDS, or

         25  people with chronic illnesses, et cetera.
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          2                 Unfortunately, however, as a

          3  consequence of only partially receiving our

          4  influenza vaccination supply, we were unable to

          5  offer the mass vaccination program that we have

          6  historically offered free to members of our

          7  respective communities for the last four years.

          8  Approximately 6,000 individual received free flu

          9  shots for this initiative last year. Because these

         10  members of the community traditionally had access to

         11  their flu shots via this initiative, community

         12  members was tremendously concerned this year that

         13  our health centers had to limit administration of

         14  influenza vaccinations to only registered patients

         15  who fall with the priority groups identified by the

         16  CDC for the 2004/05 influenza season.

         17                 Although our State and City  public

         18  health officials have tried to minimize the panic

         19  and fear felt by members of our communities, through

         20  public advisories and the media, our health centers

         21  continue to receive hundreds of telephone calls each

         22  week from individuals which are very concerned that

         23  they have been unable to receive their influenza

         24  vaccination.  While we maintain a wait list, we are

         25  uncertain our outstanding order will be received.
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          2                 It is somewhat ironic that we, at the

          3  community health level, have been successful in our

          4  health outreach efforts to educate high- risk,

          5  vulnerable populations about the need to minimize

          6  their exposure to the flu by receiving influenza

          7  vaccine.  However, as much as we would like to

          8  continue expansion of these efforts, we must respond

          9  to the current situation.  This year, we are left in

         10  the unenviable position of having to turn thousands

         11  of people away who have heeded our call because

         12  there is an influenza vaccine shortage.

         13                 Although we are not alone in this,

         14  speaking from personal experience, it is

         15  heartbreaking to have to advise community members,

         16  that unlike prior years, we are not in a position to

         17  offer the influenza vaccine to them.  In response to

         18  the current shortage, and to help reduce the

         19  potential transmission of influenza, we instruct

         20  patients who are ineligible to receive the influenza

         21  vaccination because they do not fall within the

         22  indicated priority groups, and community members who

         23  contact us by phone, on how to reduce the risk of

         24  contacting influenza.  We do this by providing

         25  education on preventive public measures, or as
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          2  previously articulated by Deputy Commissioner

          3  Weisfuse, respiratory etiquette.

          4                 In response to this severe influenza

          5  vaccine shortage, our Community Health Centers have

          6  implemented the State Health Department's "Interim

          7  Influenza Vaccination Recommendations."

          8  Additionally, we have worked with the City Health

          9  Department through the Vaccines For Children

         10  Program, and were able to identify a small amount of

         11  influenza vaccine inventory we could use for our

         12  Pediatric population at our Centers.  We have also

         13  reached out to our Federal, State and City elected

         14  officials in an attempt to try to identify

         15  additional influenza vaccine supplies.  We are also

         16  working with our National Association of Community

         17  Health Centers, and the Community Health Center

         18  Association of New York State, seeking their

         19  assistance in trying to identify additional supplies

         20  of influenza vaccine.

         21                 We are appreciative of the

         22  responsiveness of CDC, the New York State Department

         23  of Health, and the New York City Department of

         24  Health and Mental Hygiene in providing guidance and

         25  counsel on how to address the current situation.
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          2  Something must be done, however, at the national

          3  level to address the issue of vaccine production

          4  diversification and distribution into the future.

          5                 Our Community Health Centers are on

          6  the frontlines of providing primary care services to

          7  the most vulnerable members of our community.

          8  Despite this, however, we are unfortunately not in a

          9  position of meeting their needs unless we are able

         10  to receive our remaining outstanding order, or if

         11  there is a redistribution mechanism established that

         12  enables those providers who care for high- risk

         13  populations to be given a high- priority status for

         14  distribution of unshipped doses of vaccine, or newly

         15  manufactured vaccines.

         16                 We commend the City Council for

         17  providing this forum to discuss this weighty issue.

         18  We look forward other working together to both;

         19  examine ways to address the current situation; as

         20  well as into the future, to proposed measures to

         21  prevent future influenza vaccination shortages and

         22  meet the health care needs of our communities.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  speak with you today and for the tremendous support

         25  you provide other Community Health Centers in
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          2  helping us improve the health of all New Yorkers.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          4  just want to kind of note something before Darryl

          5  goes, it is really interesting, and I don't know

          6  what this means that in both your testimony and also

          7  in Greater New York's testimony, there was

          8  compliments as it relates to CDC, but that is not

          9  what DOH was saying.  So I don't know whether CDC

         10  kind of, it seems like an odd thing to say about the

         11  federal government, is too focused on the grassroots

         12  and not on their government partners.  But I just

         13  think it is kind of interesting that somehow that,

         14  you know, that step got missed.  Maybe, I am kind of

         15  thinking out loud, you know, interestingly we talked

         16  about HASA this morning, and we had overlooked that,

         17  maybe there was such a rush to like get to the

         18  externals, on all parts of government, which I

         19  understand was kind of then all left over our

         20  government infrastructure, I don't know, I am kind

         21  of making that up.

         22                 But there has been a lot that has

         23  been very helpful to me from everybody's testimony.

         24  But that was one thing I find very interesting.

         25                 Sorry, Darryl, go ahead.
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          2                 MR. NG:  Good afternoon.  Thank you

          3  for the opportunity to testify.  My name is Darryl

          4  Ng.  I am Director of Government Relations for Gay

          5  Men's Health Crisis, the nation's first and most

          6  comprehensive agency responding to the AIDS

          7  epidemic.  The current shortage of flu vaccine

          8  raises serious issues for people with a compromising

          9  immune system, including people living with

         10  HIV/AIDS.

         11                 Despite the Public Health Service

         12  guidelines recommending vaccine for people with

         13  compromised immune systems, New York erstwhile

         14  living with HIV/AIDS are having a difficult time

         15  getting vaccinations from their health care

         16  providers and public clinics.  In absence of

         17  information from the government about its plans to

         18  deal with this difficult situation, people are

         19  legitimately concerned about the risks of the flu

         20  and the dangers that it can have.   These concerns

         21  are heightened by the recent overwhelming, current

         22  media coverage.  There are three areas that the City

         23  can improve on in order to address the great concern

         24  among the community of people living with HIV/AIDS.

         25                 1.  Develop a fair and equable
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          2  vaccine distribution plan.  The City must ensure

          3  that adequate supply of the flu vaccine reaches all

          4  target populations prioritized by the CDC.  Similar

          5  to the logic and necessity that the vaccine be

          6  distributed directly to senior centers, the vaccine

          7  must also be distributed to HIV/AIDS clinics.  City-

          8  funded HIV clinics, AIDS Designated Centers, Ryan

          9  White funded clinics, ADAP Plus providers, and

         10  private practices that provide medical care to a

         11  large volume of people living with HIV/AIDS are an

         12  obvious starting point to ensuring that people with

         13  HIV have access to the vaccine.  Depending on the

         14  amount of available vaccine, efforts should also be

         15  made to reach high- risk individuals through STD

         16  clinics, emergency rooms, immediate care facilities,

         17  and homeless health clinics.

         18                 2.  New York Department of Health

         19  should develop a flu shortage memorandum

         20  specifically addressing the unique issues faced by

         21  HIV/AIDS consumer and providers.  In this update,

         22  DOH should clarify that the CDC standards for those

         23  with immune suppression, one particular issue is

         24  that some HIV providers mistakenly believe that only

         25  severely compromised HIV/AIDS patients are eligible
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          2  for the flu vaccine, and thus denying vaccination

          3  treatment to a large percentage of their patients.

          4  DOHMH should take immediate steps to correct this

          5  misconception. DOHMH should also inform consumers

          6  and providers about future vaccine supply

          7  projections, current influenza activity, antiviral

          8  medications and other ways to prevent influenza.

          9  Finally, DOHMH should broadly publicize where

         10  consumers and providers can get more updated

         11  information, particularly postings of locations and

         12  availability of flu clinics.

         13                 3. Eligibility verification at City

         14  flu clinics must be simplified, flexible, and

         15  protect HIV confidentiality. If the vaccine is not

         16  available through one's regular medical provider or

         17  if the person is under- insured or uninsured, he/she

         18  may turn to the City flu clinics for help.  In such

         19  cases, we advocate that a person living with

         20  HIV/AIDS have several options for verifying flu shot

         21  eligibility.  For example, proper identification and

         22  HIV medications can be used as ample eligibility

         23  verification.  For those that who do not want to

         24  reveal their HIV status, then a note from a

         25  physician simply stating that the person has a
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          2  chronic illness within the CDC's influenza

          3  prevention priority list should also suffice.

          4                 New Yorkers living with HIV/AIDS are

          5  among the most vulnerable and their health concerns

          6  are aggravated by the vaccine shortage.  GMHC

          7  understands that this difficult situation, and we

          8  appreciate the opportunity to testify this

          9  afternoon.  We offer our complete assistance and

         10  partnership in working with the City.  Thank you for

         11  your time and understanding.

         12                 MR. MORANTE:  Good afternoon.  My

         13  name is Joaquin Morante.  I am from the Commission

         14  of the Public's Health System. Bring it up closer?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

         16                 MR. MORANTE:  Okay.  Thank you for

         17  the opportunity to testify today on the need for

         18  serious action on the flu vaccine crisis.  In the

         19  context of the current situation, this is a welcome

         20  resolution in which we support.  But in the larger

         21  context the more serious problem is the lack of

         22  accountability of the pharmaceutical industry to the

         23  needs of the American public and the seeming

         24  unwillingness of the federal government to confront

         25  this crisis.  With profits of about 17 percent, the
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          2  pharmaceutical industry should be more responsive

          3  and willing to take some risk in the manufacture of

          4  vaccines.  The federal agencies should be figuring

          5  out how to make them accountable and responsible,

          6  instead of relying on only two corporations to

          7  produce the flu vaccine.

          8                 The sight of seniors lined up to get

          9  flu vaccine was worse than frightening, it has been

         10  sickening.  As soon as the announcement was made

         11  about the Chiron Corporation, and the consequent

         12  shortages of the vaccine, there should have been a

         13  plan in place for the immunizing of high- risk

         14  population.  If there had been a bioterrorism

         15  scared, there might have been a plan in place.  But

         16  with just the run of the mill flu in the offering,

         17  there was no federal, state, or for that matter,

         18  City plan to ensure protection of our residents.

         19  Why did 80 plus and 90 plus year olds have to wait

         20  in the cold to see if they could get a number to be

         21  eligible for the shot?  Why didn't the City Health

         22  Department mobilize resources to ensure that:

         23                 1.  There were lots of places people

         24  could go to get the shot.

         25                 2.  There was a lot of staff ready to
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          2  administer the shot.

          3                 3.  That all was in readiness.

          4                 But we don't have public health plan

          5  for the City, and the public health infrastructure

          6  is crumbling, or if not, then in bad shape.  For

          7  students entering college who are required to get

          8  certain shots, there is only one public health

          9  location in the entire City to go to, the Crown

         10  Heights Health Department Center.

         11                 Children over the age of two who do

         12  not have chronic conditions are not considered in

         13  the high- risk group for the flu vaccine.  We are

         14  presuming that children with asthma are considered

         15  high risk, but what efforts have been made to inform

         16  and vaccinated this large and growing population?

         17  Even if not considered in the high- risk group,

         18  protecting children from the flu has received little

         19  to no attention.  Yet, we know that many children

         20  are in crowded day care or headstart centers family

         21  day care settings, or schools, where they are

         22  vulnerable to catching the flu.  If they become

         23  sick, they can readily infect others and often

         24  require that the parent stay home to provide care

         25  for them, thus, affecting the parent's ability to
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          2  work.

          3                 We urge you to pass this resolution,

          4  but then go on to review the City's public health

          5  infrastructure, with an eye toward the provision of

          6  services, particularly those for children.  This is

          7  particularly important as we are losing Child Health

          8  Clinic hours and services.  These facilities are

          9  designated to provide flu vaccines to children, and

         10  therefore, are very important.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         13  just want to kind of ask a general question of,

         14  really it is more the first three panelists, since

         15  the Commission doesn't run any clinics or programs.

         16                 Do you feel that, obviously, DOHMH

         17  and DFTA have been trying to communicate with folks.

         18  And as I said, I don't know if you were here when

         19  the DFTA Commissioner was testifying, it sounded to

         20  me like there wasn't enough communication with

         21  senior centers, if only two is the number of times

         22  they have been communicated with from here to then.

         23  I meant to ask DOHMH for a list of how many times

         24  they communicated with different agencies, but never

         25  got to it, so I will forward that.
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          2                 And I think clearly, Darryl, from the

          3  fact that HASA wasn't even spoken to, it is pretty

          4  clear, and that was my suspicion that there has not

          5  been enough communication on some of the HIV

          6  community issues.  And your specific three ideas for

          7  HIV community issues, although some go beyond that,

          8  I think are really excellent, and I am going to

          9  forward those to DOHMH and HRA tomorrow, and we may

         10  even make sense to pull together a meeting with the

         11  HIV community, Commissioner Eggleston and DOHMH to

         12  talk about some of those issues as well.

         13                 But if you guys could me your sense

         14  of whether you feel like, yes, we have found enough

         15  information, you know, two, Council member, is

         16  enough, if you look at this way, or whatever, what

         17  people feel about that?

         18                 MR. NG:  I want to say that I feel

         19  definitely they have not.  I actually submitted my

         20  request to State DOH and City DOH at the same time

         21  about three weeks ago.  And the State DOH has gotten

         22  back to me.  They even, in fact, have implemented

         23  the memorandum and got that out to AIDS service

         24  providers last Monday.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  The
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          2  confidentiality memorandum?

          3                 MR. NG:  No the memo that states the

          4  unique needs of HIV - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Oh, gotcha,

          6  number two.

          7                 MR. NG:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Really?

          9                 MR. NG:  Yes, they released that last

         10  Monday, and I still have not heard about any

         11  parallel universe from the City DOH.  And we also

         12  asked City DOH the same questions, which they said

         13  they are getting back to me.  They haven't gotten

         14  back to me yet.  So they said they are working on

         15  it, but they haven't gotten back to me.  But State

         16  DOH did get back to me.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And they did it,

         18  they got back to you in the affirmative.

         19                 MR. NG:  They did it.  But I have to

         20  say in all fairness, State DOH said that some of the

         21  things like the distribution plan is left up to the

         22  City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         24                 MR. NG:  And they can say it.  So

         25  some of the answers were easier for the State.  But
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          2  of the ones that they could answer, they did.  The

          3  City one we are still waiting back for.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can I just ask

          5  you a favor, that you give a copy of your testimony

          6  to Desiree from the Office of Legislative Affairs,

          7  because she is bobble heading back there, so I want

          8  to make sure that she has the specifics of it,

          9  because I can tell that they are going to follow- up

         10  on it.  So thank you.

         11                 Sorry, go ahead, whomever.

         12                 MS. WESTERVELT:  I am going to

         13  preference my remarks with that I think we have

         14  gotten enough information from the State DOH and the

         15  City DOH, with regard to the indicated priority

         16  groups.  With regard to distribution of remaining

         17  available supplies of vaccine, we haven't gotten a

         18  lot of communication in that regard.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It is very

         20  helpful for us to know what to follow- up on.

         21  Jessica.

         22                 MS. WALKER:  Yes, I would agree with

         23  that exactly. I think that some of the centers did

         24  feel, especially when it first began that they were

         25  a little bit ill- prepared for the onslaught of
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          2  calls that they received and the lines, of what

          3  exactly to do with that.

          4                 And also, I think that they could

          5  have used a little bit more guidance also in

          6  prioritizing.  I know that they knew, they may have

          7  gotten information about the high- risk groups, who

          8  should be getting them.  But I think within

          9  prioritizing among those seniors, who should be

         10  getting them, then.  I mean, if, you know, they only

         11  had 50 doses - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         13                 MS. WALKER: - -  and they are having

         14  150 seniors come in, should they prioritized there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Did you get any

         16  information, was there any guidance if you had 150

         17  seniors and they were all, you know, seniors, they

         18  are over 65, so they are all in the age group,

         19  whether you should then first give to those who, you

         20  know I'm making this up, but first give it to people

         21  who are seniors and have a heart condition, or

         22  seniors who also have asthma.  You know, so that

         23  people who are 65 and don't have other factors,

         24  whatever, would then fall to the lower.  But we hope

         25  we get it, and should get it, but if you have 150,
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          2  and you only have 50.

          3                 MS. WALKER:  Right.  As far as I

          4  know, there was no specific guidance there.  I mean,

          5  you know, these folks, I would hope would use their

          6  common sense, when it came to that. But again, it

          7  would have been nice to have that sort of spelled

          8  out.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Absolutely.  And

         10  you would hope people use common sense, but in these

         11  crisis situations, look there are towns in New

         12  Jersey that are holding a lottery, you know what I

         13  mean.  So panic situations, people don't necessarily

         14  know what to do.  So, you know, and you have 150

         15  seniors yelling at you also, give me my shot, I

         16  don't know that you are going necessarily be as

         17  clear headed as you might be in the abstract.

         18                 Council Member Stewart.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You just

         20  raised an issue that I am not too sure what is

         21  happening.  And I want to know if any one of you

         22  would know about it.  And that fact is that we know

         23  that we have quite a number of children who have

         24  asthma. And I wanted to know if before this

         25  emergency came up of shortage, was it one of the
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          2  requirement, or one of the mode of really treatments

          3  to have asthma kids, just like all the, or any child

          4  will have vaccine for most of the communicable

          5  diseases as a child.  As a child that has asthma,

          6  would they get that shot for flu vaccine, does

          7  anybody know anything about that?

          8                 MS. WESTERVELT:  I believe that was

          9  previously a standard of care.  You are asking

         10  before the indicated groups were established?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right.  I am

         12  saying you have quite a number of kids who are

         13  asthma kids.  And I want to know if before this

         14  emergency, if that was one of the standard of care

         15  for them to get the vaccine for influenza?

         16                 MS. WESTERVELT:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  That is one

         18  of the standard of care.  So would not that be on

         19  the list with schools?

         20                 MS. WESTERVELT:  Children with asthma

         21  are in the indicated group.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Are in the

         23  indicated group.

         24                 MS. WESTERVELT:  Because they have a

         25  chronic condition.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  They are

          3  still in the indicated, all right.

          4                 MR. MORANTE:  I guess what the

          5  Commission would say is that more of an effort needs

          6  to be made to let the public know, and let, you

          7  know, the parents of children with asthma, you know,

          8  that they are considered in the high- risk group and

          9  that they do get priority in terms of having access

         10  to the flu vaccine.  I don't think that right now

         11  that is a message that has been prioritized to do

         12  it.  In other words, to the public need to the

         13  clinic.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And if I could

         15  just jump in on that point and ask, we didn't get to

         16  ask this when the agencies were here, but just to

         17  ask, Desiree, from the Office of Legislative Affairs

         18  to get, I would be interested to know if there has

         19  been any communication through either the school-

         20  based clinic or through the Department of Education

         21  to parents about, or guardians, about what is the

         22  status of kids with asthma, or HIV positive kids, or

         23  whatever.  And also through the Foster Care Network

         24  in the City, if there has been any communication to

         25  try to get that message out about that that folks do
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          2  fall into the, I don't know what are we calling

          3  them, priority category.

          4                 I am sorry, Council member.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  That was my

          6  only concern. I wanted to be sure that they have

          7  been included in that list. And, you know, I don't

          8  think communication is there to deal with that so

          9  that people know to run and take their children to

         10  get the shot.  Or I don't think the schools in

         11  itself is a place where you would know that the

         12  child has to, you know, the child is listed as

         13  someone with asthma.  And before they come back,

         14  they should have had their shots, and things like

         15  that.

         16                 I think that it left on parents, if

         17  they know to do that.  And I don't think it should

         18  be left on the parents alone.  I think it is

         19  something, the information should be reached out.

         20  It should be something in the school, just like you

         21  must have your documents with the other vaccines

         22  before your child can come back to school.  I think

         23  that that should be one of the things that should be

         24  listed, if the child is an asthma patient, should

         25  have that flu shot, before they can come to school.
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          2  And that is all I think.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you all

          4  very much.  And we are going to be following up,

          5  obviously, on a number of the issues that just got

          6  raised by the four of you, and also in the earlier

          7  part of the hearing.  So you will probably be

          8  hearing back from us for other meetings.  Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 And our final panel, I don't know

         11  talking is obviously a big challenge for me today.

         12  Our final panel is going to be Doctor Nathaniel

         13  Hupert, Doctor David Keepnews, and Doctor

         14  Christianson, who I think like Cher, only has one

         15  name.  But if he or she has another one, they can

         16  share it with us.  Oh, I'm sorry, Judith Arroyo from

         17  District Council 37.  Whoever would like to start

         18  can go right ahead, while folks are coming up.

         19                 MR. CHRISTIANSON:  I am Steve

         20  Christianson from the Visiting Nurse Service of New

         21  York.  Thank you for asking me to come and speak on

         22  this important topic.

         23                 I speak today from direct experience.

         24    Visiting Nurse Service has 150 years of commitment

         25  to supporting efforts for public health in the areas
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          2  we are privileged to serve.  And because we have

          3  worked with the New York City Department of Health

          4  for the last 14 years to help make the New York City

          5  flu immunization program successful.

          6                 This year is a special challenge

          7  because of a national vaccine shortage, and the

          8  difficulty plays in vaccine prioritization and

          9  redistribution, most of which are not in the control

         10  of the Health Department.

         11                 There are three things that I would

         12  like to emphasize today:

         13                 1.  The vaccination of the high- risk

         14  population that is primary importance to reduce

         15  illness complications and hospitalization from the

         16  flu in a time of shortage.

         17                 2.  The communication and education

         18  programs for health care professionals and the

         19  public are needed to reduce the spread of flu, and

         20  protecting individuals who will not be vaccinated.

         21                 3. That the New York City Department

         22  of Health plays a leadership role in both of those

         23  areas, and should be supported and provided the

         24  resources necessary to continue vaccination of the

         25  high- risk population.  And the fair and equitable
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          2  distribution of available flu vaccine, and the

          3  protection of public safety through dissemination of

          4  information to health care institutions,

          5  professionals, and the public.

          6                 I testified before the New York

          7  Senate State Health Committee on October 20th, and I

          8  have included my testimony attached to my

          9  communication.

         10                 Vaccination is the cornerstone of

         11  influenza prevention and reduction of illness, and

         12  even death.  The Department of Health has a well

         13  developed vaccination clinic program.  During the

         14  flu season there are usually a secondary vaccinator

         15  immunizing those who are not served by the many

         16  private agencies, physicians.  And they also conduct

         17  an extensive outreach program in the community at

         18  senior centers in the community.

         19                 This year the Department of Health

         20  has had to become a primary vaccinator in the

         21  absence of other sources. Besides a flu hotline, the

         22  Department of Health provides an Internet flu

         23  vaccine locator and schedules a senior health center

         24  outreach programs to assist high- risk individuals

         25  in finding vaccination sites.
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          2                 I believe the Department should be

          3  commended for immunizing as many high- risk

          4  individuals in the first four weeks of this flu

          5  season, as they did in the entire 2003 flu season.

          6  VNSNY provided nurses this year to augment the

          7  vaccination clinic staff that, in part, allowed them

          8  to handle this increased demand.  I would like to

          9  stress that even if there are more cases of flu this

         10  year because of vaccine shortage, an effective

         11  program to reach the high- risk population with

         12  immunizations will reduce serious illness, the need

         13  for hospitalization, and mortality, that otherwise

         14  might occur if they were not reached.

         15                 In the absence of good and reliable

         16  information during a health care crisis, rumor and

         17  misinformation can cause both confusion and panic.

         18  The Department of Health has provided health care

         19  professionals and institutions with detailed

         20  information on all aspects of the health emergency,

         21  providing both interpretation and implementation

         22  guidelines for national health care policy locally,

         23  including standards for hospital care, as well as

         24  continued updates as the event unfolded.

         25                 The accomplished this through a well
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          2  developed Health Alert Network, and in coordination

          3  with other organization, like the Greater New York

          4  Hospital Association, which the visiting nurse

          5  association belongs to.   This allowed our

          6  organization and hospitals to develop more effective

          7  emergency plans, and was able to provide our staff

          8  with information to identify high- risk patients

          9  with flu- like symptoms so that anitvirals could be

         10  prescribed in time to reduce complications in these

         11  individuals.  As well as help us prioritized

         12  immunizations for our own high- risk, direct, care

         13  staff.

         14                 The flu hotline this year in the

         15  first four weeks they responded to 100,000 calls

         16  from the public, just in the first four weeks.  And

         17  they also have clearly communicated the high- risk,

         18  who the high- risk population is.

         19                 Each year the Visiting Nurse Service

         20  participates with the Health Department in the

         21  planning process to reach in the following year,

         22  populations in geography is under- serve in the

         23  present year.  As a result of national guidelines,

         24  they also developed plans for unlikely and more

         25  dangerous problems like pandemics.
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          2                 This knowledge and regular health

          3  care planning has enabled Health Care Department in

          4  New York City to step forward this year and meet the

          5  challenges that they faced.  I feel that the

          6  Department has demonstrated how important it is to

          7  support and provide resources to our public health

          8  organizations that have the staff and ability to

          9  provide leadership in the planning, and implementing

         10  programs for the fair and equitable distribution of

         11  vaccine to reach those most at risk in time of

         12  shortage, guidance for institutions and health care

         13  practitioner, as well as reliable and updated

         14  information for health care professionals and the

         15  public.

         16                 We feel that the Department of Health

         17  has demonstrated its ability to make sure that flu

         18  vaccine reaches those most in need medically, and to

         19  protect the public welfare for us all.  I think we

         20  started off the discussion with asking who is in

         21  charge, or who makes the decision?  We would vote

         22  for the Public Health Department.

         23                 DR. KEEPNEWS:  Good afternoon.  I am

         24  David Keepnews, and I am the Director of the Office

         25  of Policy Development at the New York Academy of
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          2  Medicine.  The New York Academy of Medicine is an

          3  independent, non- profit organization dedicated to

          4  enhancing the health of the public through research,

          5  education, and advocacy with a particular emphasis

          6  on under served urban populations.  I appreciate the

          7  opportunity to speak to you today.

          8                 Obviously, the flu vaccine shortage

          9  and the factors leading to it are national in scope,

         10  but they have called for quick action by the City to

         11  plan and implement responses to the real and

         12  anticipated consequences of that shortage.  We see

         13  today's hearing as, just not as an opportunity to

         14  review what the City agencies have done and are

         15  planning, but also as an opportunity to identify

         16  what measures could be most effective in preparing

         17  for future shortages.  And also reviewing responses

         18  to the current flu vaccine shortage, can yield

         19  important lessons regarding preparedness for future

         20  public health emergencies.

         21                 In the interest of time and

         22  necessity, I will keep my remarks to a few brief

         23  points.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You are kind.

         25                 DR. KEEPNEWS:  Thanks, also, I am
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          2  losing my voice. I hope it is not some communicable

          3  disease.  No.  You have a copy, - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well there are

          5  some others on the panel could probably help you.

          6                 DR. KEEPNEWS:  You have a copy of our

          7  written statement, which contains more detail.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 First, we recognize that because the

         10  factors shaping the shortage are national in scope,

         11  that continued advocacy at the federal level is an

         12  important element of the City's response.  You took

         13  actions along those earlier today. You heard what

         14  Susan Waltman had to say, and I think we have

         15  discussed a little bit in our testimony, also in our

         16  written testimony some of that agenda.

         17                 Second, the current, fragmented,

         18  private, market based system for purchasing and

         19  distributing vaccine, while it may be adequate

         20  during times of sufficient supply, presents a major

         21  obstacle to matching available supply to high- risk

         22  individuals during time of shortage.

         23                 New York needs a centralized

         24  mechanism for tracking availability, and one that

         25  includes all providers, not just hospitals.  You
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          2  have heard description of the HERDS system, which

          3  clearly is extremely valuable on a number of fronts.

          4    It is limited to hospitals.  And it is my

          5  understanding that the New York State Department of

          6  Health has done some adjunctive surveys to try to

          7  look at other providers as well.  But I think we

          8  need to look at the consistent mechanism, perhaps

          9  building on HERDS to track availability.

         10                 We also need to consider whether the

         11  City needs to control a greater proportion of

         12  vaccine supply to be able to cover its own needs,

         13  and also to direct distribution more efficiently.

         14  While current, voluntary distribution efforts are

         15  important, we may need to consider how to proceed if

         16  those efforts are insufficient.  Continued efforts

         17  to assure that private providers have up- to- date

         18  information are important. These efforts have been

         19  particularly successful regarding revised CDC

         20  guidelines for priority populations, but many of the

         21  large number of providers, who are still without

         22  vaccine need information on current and anticipated

         23  developments and vaccine supply, so that they know

         24  how to advise their high- risk patients as to what

         25  to do.  Even if it is just to check back in the next
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          2  three weeks to find out if an anticipated supply has

          3  become available, I think that would be helpful.

          4                 I will just mention also, but

          5  typically African American and Hispanic populations,

          6  and individuals at or near poverty level have lower

          7  immunization rates than the general population.  We

          8  are concerned that the vaccine shortage may serve to

          9  increase these disparities, and that requires some

         10  careful attention.  In addition, among these under-

         11  served groups, are particularly hard- to- reach

         12  populations with consistently low vaccination rates.

         13    The New York Academy of Medicine has recently

         14  initiated a project involving rapid immunization of

         15  hard- to- reach populations in eight Harlem and

         16  South Bronx neighborhoods.  And we are hopeful that

         17  this project, which is under the leadership of Dr.

         18  David Vlahov of the Academy Center for Urban

         19  Epidemiological Studies, we yield some important

         20  information that can help guide planning for

         21  immunizing a high- risk populations and reducing

         22  disparities in immunization rates.  It can also

         23  serve as a model for emergency preparedness of

         24  vaccination plans.

         25                 Briefly, regarding preparation for
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          2  flu outbreak, the Department of Health and Mental

          3  Hygiene has circulated important information about

          4  the use of antivirals and pneumococcal vaccine.

          5  These interventions take on a heightened importance

          6  in light of the vaccine shortage.  But apart from

          7  any potential supply issues, and we are glad to hear

          8  that supply may not be an issue with those, careful

          9  attention needs to be given to reaching individuals

         10  who need other be aware of their availability.

         11                 Guidelines for who should receive

         12  these preparations and under what circumstances are

         13  more complex than for the flu vaccine.  Their

         14  administration requires some familiarity with or at

         15  least inquiry into individuals medical and/or

         16  immunization history, and widespread administration

         17  is more complex than in mass flu vaccination

         18  clinics.  So carefully planned, outreach, and

         19  education efforts are especially important as our

         20  particular efforts to reach under- served

         21  populations.

         22                 And finally, we believe that it will

         23  be important at the conclusion of this year's flu

         24  season to draw a careful balance sheet of what

         25  worked and what didn't, both in terms of responses
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          2  to the vaccine shortage, and to whatever outbreaks

          3  may occur.  This should be undertaken as a

          4  collaborate effort involving the City Council, the

          5  City agencies, community and advocacy groups, public

          6  health practitioners, and others.  And the study can

          7  identify lessons not only regarding vaccine

          8  shortages, but also for shoring up the City's

          9  ability to prepare for public health emergencies.

         10                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         11  to speak to you today, and we look forward to

         12  continued collaborative efforts on these matters.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, and

         14  thank you for taking the time to meet with the

         15  staff, as well.

         16                 DR. KEEPNEWS:  Oh sure, thanks.

         17                 DR. HUPERT:  Good afternoon.  I am

         18  Nathaniel Hupert.  I am a physician and researcher

         19  at Weill Medical College of Cornell University.  I

         20  appreciated the opportunity from the Committees and

         21  from the Subcommittee to speak with you briefly. I

         22  would like to break my comments down into two parts.

         23    First, I would like to talk as a disease modeler,

         24  and then I would like to talk as a primary care

         25  physician.  And I have distributed one graph,
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          2  because I am a modeler.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We got it.

          4                 DR. HUPERT:  We like these things.  I

          5  think the best way to look at what happened this

          6  year is as an opportunity to evaluate what we might

          7  do in case something worse happens. And I have a

          8  personal interest in this, my great- grandmother

          9  died at the age of 32 in Williamsburg in the 1918

         10  outbreak.  She was in full bloom of health, and she

         11  was struck down in two days. And this is what the

         12  experts in pandemic flu are telling us might be in

         13  the offering, if one of these unusual strains and

         14  deadly strains gets loose.  In which case, as we now

         15  know, we will not have enough vaccine, and we need

         16  to think of other things.

         17                 So let me just point to the graph.

         18  What I want to make a case for here is that New York

         19  is really exceptional.  In the red you will see six

         20  of the top seven counties in the country by

         21  population density, or within a 15- mile radius of

         22  where we sit right now.  We are really different

         23  than the rest of the country. And I would argue

         24  strongly that when we hear about CDC recommendations

         25  that we listen to them, but that we remember that
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          2  they may not necessarily be directed at us, at our

          3  subway system, for example, at the density

          4  population in Manhattan.  And that we would have to

          5  make sure that those recommendations address our

          6  current needs.

          7                 Now for the current year, I think the

          8  recommendations of the CDC are absolutely on target.

          9    They recommend that we address those who might be

         10  worst hit by the flu vaccine.  But looking into the

         11  future, as I mentioned, it may not be the old who

         12  are the victims, it may be the young.  And in terms

         13  of planning, it may also not be the hospitals where

         14  the real effect is felt, but rather in the pre-

         15  hospital setting.

         16                 So what I am suggesting is that we,

         17  in the future look to ways that we, as a City, can

         18  improve our preparedness.  I know there has been a

         19  lot of conversation about where the planning for

         20  emergency operations lies.  And I would argue

         21  strongly that one of the things that we need to plan

         22  for are now, before any serious event occurs,

         23  thinking about ways to reduce disease transmission.

         24  And actually, Council Members Stewart and Sears

         25  raised some very important questions about this.  I
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          2  will just give one example.

          3                 What do we think the role of our

          4  subway system would be in preventing transmission of

          5  a major infectious disease?  And can we, in this

          6  lull time try something out.  For example, handing

          7  out antiseptic wipes, will people accept them? Do we

          8  know if it will actually work?  We might as well try

          9  that out now, before we need to do it in the crunch

         10  of an outbreak.

         11                 Let me just change hats now, and in

         12  talking about preparedness planning, switch to my

         13  role as a primary care physician on the Upper East

         14  Side of Manhattan.  I have been given the

         15  opportunity in the past couple of weeks to speak on

         16  national and local news about what I was doing as a

         17  doctor, and I had to say on national news that I was

         18  unable to find a flu clinic for my patients, because

         19  I had to go through the same phone numbers and the

         20  same web sites as everyone else.  I would argue

         21  strongly, again, that if 90 percent of the flu shots

         22  in a regular year given out by primary care

         23  physicians that when the crunch time comes, that

         24  whole responsibility not be shifted to the

         25  government agencies as it was done here.  There has
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          2  to be a better way for primary care physicians in

          3  the field to call and talk with people.

          4                 Now I have many of those people's

          5  names, Dr. Weisfuse, Dr. Blank, Dr. Layton, because

          6  I work with them on a day- to- day basis.  And we

          7  have a wonderful relationship with them from an

          8  academic standpoint.  But from a primary care

          9  physician standpoint, I think if there is going to

         10  be one call number in the future, there really

         11  should be two, one for the public, and one for

         12  physicians.  So that we can access information in a

         13  way that is, in some sense, privileged so that we

         14  can do the best thing for our patients.

         15                 That is all I will say right now, and

         16  again, I really appreciate the opportunity to come

         17  here and speak with you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just, before

         19  Judith goes, I want to say, I am very, actually,

         20  interested in, and though the time has gotten away

         21  from us, and actually I have meeting waiting to move

         22  downstairs, but I am actually very interested in

         23  following up with all the folks in the panel, but

         24  with you folks as well.  Because one of the things I

         25  am particularly interested in, and I think we have
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          2  not done a good enough job on, is talking to private

          3  doctors.  Because I don't know one person who has

          4  called their private doctor and been able to get a

          5  shot.  And that is not the private doctor's fault.

          6                 I mean my father who is 78, his

          7  doctor doesn't have any.  My doctor, who happens to

          8  have a large HIV/AIDS clientele, they have really, I

          9  mean when I was in there, not for trying to get a

         10  shot, but for something else, two weeks ago, they

         11  didn't have any.  And she didn't know if she was

         12  ever going to get any, and she too, felt like she

         13  didn't get enough information from the Department of

         14  Health.  If you ask the Department of Health, they

         15  think they have communicated well with physicians.

         16  And I am not saying that they didn't want to, or

         17  that it is malicious or anything like that.  But

         18  something has failed when two different people on

         19  the end of that equation don't think the same thing

         20  has happened.

         21                 And I think the idea of a separate

         22  number, maybe we need an Ombudsperson in the

         23  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, who is

         24  particularly focused on private physicians in times

         25  of crisis, or something.  So I am going to warn you
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          2  about the bad part of coming to a health meeting,

          3  and the first part is that you have to wait because

          4  the Administration goes on forever. And then the

          5  second thing is then we know your name and phone

          6  number, so you will be hearing back from us.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 And thank you, Judith, for agreeing

          9  to be brief so that I can go down and talk to

         10  CableVision on behalf of the Communication Workers

         11  of America on a different and unrelated flu matter.

         12                 MS. ARROYO:  I am Judith Berger

         13  Arroyo.  I am the Vice- President of Local 430,

         14  District Council 37, United Federation of Nurses and

         15  Epidemiologist.  We are the Union that represents

         16  the Public Health Nurses of the City of New York.

         17  You have our brief statement there, and one of the

         18  key points is that, like past emergencies the Public

         19  Health Nurses were mobilized and shifted to address

         20  this.  We answered the call, but there are fewer and

         21  fewer of us every year, and we need more.

         22                 The second thing is for the Public

         23  Health Nurses in the school system, it has always

         24  been part of our September teaching to go in and

         25  teach children how to wash their hands and
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          2  respiratory etiquette, and we are doing that this

          3  year like we always do.  We have also have been

          4  outreaching to our parents of children who do suffer

          5  from asthma, and have told them that their children

          6  are in the risk group, and they should go ahead and

          7  get the shot from their pediatrician, especially

          8  since pediatric flu doses are coming from Aventis.

          9  So there really shouldn't be a problem there.

         10                 What we are hearing from our members

         11  in the school however, is that they could use

         12  translations of the respiratory etiquettes into

         13  Spanish, Chinese, Korean, whatever.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well that is

         15  something that we can definitely try to work on.

         16                 MS. ARROYO:  So we can send it home.

         17  Right now, many of - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think

         19  translations of the respiratory etiquette materials

         20  is something we should want to follow- up on.

         21                 MS. ARROYO:  Yes, so we can send it

         22  home to the parents, because right now a lot of it

         23  is all in English.

         24                 The other thing is, has to do with

         25  provider call line, and maybe you could follow- up.
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          2  Soon after the Anthrax situation, many of us Public

          3  Health Nurses were trained on the Department of

          4  Health computer call center with the specific goal

          5  that if another emergency like this came up, that we

          6  would be available in the evenings, on the weekends,

          7  and during the day to staff that call center to

          8  answer doctors, to answer questions from providers.

          9  As far as I know, we haven't heard that our members

         10  have been mobilized to do that, and you might want

         11  to check.  Because as far as we know the apparatus

         12  does exist.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, we will

         14  definitely. Those are two definite things that we

         15  will follow- up on.

         16                 Well thank you all, very much.  And

         17  you will be hearing from us, and this hearing, the

         18  joint hearing of the Health, Aging, and Subcommittee

         19  on Senior Centers is adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing adjourned at 3:45 p.m.)

         21                 (The following testimony was read

         22  into the record.)

         23

         24  Testimony of:

         25  Maria Baez
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          2  Chairperson

          3  Subcommittee on Aging

          4                 Good afternoon and welcome.  Today

          5  the Committee on Aging will focus on the effect that

          6  the flu vaccination crisis has had on our City's

          7  elderly population.  Medical experts have long been

          8  aware that influenza presents special health

          9  concerns for the elderly.  For example, research

         10  indicates that older people who have pre- existing

         11  conditions may experience a decline in their

         12  physical abilities after suffering from the flu.

         13  For people over 65 flu vaccination represent a

         14  critical and necessary preventative health care

         15  intervention.  When the elderly receive flu shots

         16  they are less likely to be hospitalized for stroke,

         17  heart attack and influenza during the flu season.

         18  That's why I am so concerned about the effect that

         19  the current flu vaccine shortage will have on

         20  elderly New Yorkers.

         21                 As you know, when it became apparent

         22  that we would not be receiving vaccine from Chiron,

         23  the CDC promulgated a number of guidelines that

         24  established priority groups for the 2004- 2005

         25  influenza season.  One priority group was adults
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          2  aged 65 years and older.  I am concerned by reports

          3  from other jurisdictions that indicate that they

          4  lack sufficient vaccine to inoculate all their

          5  residents over 65 who would like to be protected

          6  against the flu.  Specifically, I have heard that

          7  some jurisdictions are limiting flu shots to people

          8  over the age of 74 and other jurisdictions are

          9  actually making these shots available only on a

         10  lottery basis.  The Committee on Aging believes that

         11  every New Yorker over the age of 65 who wants to get

         12  a flu shot should have the opportunity to be

         13  inoculated.  In order to ensure that this goal is

         14  being realized, we will be asking the Department of

         15  the Aging and other City agencies what concrete

         16  steps they are taking to ensure that the elderly are

         17  truly being given priority treatment in our efforts

         18  to combat the flu.

         19

         20  Testimony of:

         21  Council of Senior Centers and Services of New York

         22  City, Inc.

         23                 CSCS is the central organization in

         24  New York City representing 265- member agencies

         25  providing community- based services for over 300,000
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          2  older New Yorkers.  Services provided through our

          3  member agencies include congregate and home-

          4  delivered meals, housing, case management, home

          5  care, multi- service senior centers, social adult

          6  day services, transportation, Naturally Occurring

          7  Retirement Communities (NORC's), information and

          8  referral, assistance for immigrants, computerized

          9  benefits program, educational and cultural

         10  activities, counseling, health promotion programs,

         11  legal services, opportunities for volunteerism, and

         12  intergenerational programs.

         13                 CSCS is concerned about New York

         14  City's response to the nationwide shortage of flu

         15  vaccine.  At a local level, it is important to focus

         16  on educational efforts to calm the panic generated

         17  by the media regarding the flu vaccine shortage as

         18  well as the real health risks faced by elderly New

         19  Yorkers.  While recognizing that Department of

         20  Health employees are working under difficult

         21  conditions, an authorized statement from DOH needs

         22  to be accessible to all New Yorkers.  A vaccine

         23  educational campaign launched through public

         24  agencies, human services agencies, and the New York

         25  City media could promote the City's message.  CSCS
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          2  also recommends the use of advertisements on buses

          3  and trains to promote public health information

          4  regarding the flu vaccine shortage.

          5                 The New York City Department of

          6  Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH) is recommending

          7  prioritizing flu shots for those who are 65 and

          8  older.  However, organizations such as the Visiting

          9  Nurse Service (VNS) of New York, at this time, only

         10  have one half of their flu shot supply for the month

         11  of November.  In addition, senior centers are

         12  receiving numerous phone calls for flu shots and

         13  cannot meet the demand.  While recognizing that

         14  senior centers are publicly funded, CSCS recommends

         15  that the City consider removing the names of senior

         16  centers from the DOHMH web site.  The senior centers

         17  are not able to meet the vaccination needs of their

         18  own members fully; therefore, the inundation of

         19  phone calls and people showing up who have not

         20  already signed up places an unnecessary burden on

         21  senior centers.  At a minimum, the names of senior

         22  centers on the DOHMH web site should be updated

         23  weekly.  Rather than post the names of senior

         24  centers, seniors should be directed to call 3- 1- 1,

         25  who should have updated information.  However, it
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          2  should be made clear that if they have not already

          3  signed up it is very unlikely they will receive a

          4  flu shot.

          5                 Finally, CSCS recommend that the City

          6  and/or State consider taking more aggressive

          7  measures to locate additional flu vaccines.  For

          8  example, Governor Blagojevich of Illinois is in the

          9  process of purchasing 200,000 additional doses of

         10  the flu vaccine from wholesalers in Europe and

         11  Canada.  New York, with its elderly population

         12  ranking in the top three states nationwide, need to

         13  address this public health crisis to protect our

         14  high- risk senior residents.  CSCS would like to

         15  thank the Committees on Aging and Health for holding

         16  this hearing and the opportunity to testify today.

         17

         18  Testimony of:

         19  Gloria E. Acevedo

         20  President

         21  Local 436, United Federation of Nurses and

         22  Epidemiologist

         23                 Good afternoon Council Member Quinn,

         24  and honorable members of the Health Committee.  I am

         25  Gloria E. Acevedo, President of Local 436, United
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          2  Federation of Nurses and Epidemiologist, the union

          3  that represents the Public Health Nurses and

          4  Epidemiologist of the City of New York.

          5                 We have testified in the past, before

          6  this Committee and Council, as to the important role

          7  the members of this local play in protecting the

          8  health of the citizens of this great city.

          9                 The flu shortage situation has been

         10  no different. Public health nurses were pulled form

         11  other assignments, such as school health, district

         12  public health office, et cetera, to assist in

         13  screening and inoculation of clients.

         14                 While the present number of public

         15  health nurses was sufficient for dealing with this

         16  situation, we reminded the City Council of our past

         17  testimonies, there are only approximately 800 Public

         18  Health Nurses for a city of 8.5 million people.

         19                 In addressing this, and any future

         20  disease outbreak, the Department of Health and

         21  Mental Hygiene needs to address the shortage of

         22  Public Health Nurses.

         23                 There needs to be not only an active

         24  recruitment campaign, but just as an equally active

         25  program of retention. For every one nurse that is

                                                            174

          1  HEALTH, AGING AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  recruited two are lost because of lack of proper

          3  benefits and compensation.

          4                 Thank you for allowing us to testify

          5  this afternoon.  I will be please to answer any

          6  questions you may have.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 4:25 p.m.)
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